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Chairman Statement
FTERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present
the audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
to the shareholders.

In 2017, China macro-economy maintained a stable development.
Following with the ongoing supply-side structural reform, the
energy market underwent further optimization. During the year,
China put intensive efforts in promoting the construction of an
ecological civilization by promoting clean energy. It is clearly that
the replacement of major energy consumed by green energy with
low carbon-emission is a major trend. Meanwhile, the demand for
natural gas increase gradually as a result from the “coal to gas”
policy. Benefiting from the switching policy, the Group achieved a
turnaround in the operating results of the LNG business.

During the financial year, the Group recorded consolidated
turnover of approximately RMB8,150,000,000 (2017: approximately
RMB7,973,000,000), representing a year-on-year increase of 2.2%.
The profit after tax of approximately RMB173,000,000 (2017: loss
of approximately RMB105,000,000).

Seizing opportunities in the reform of the energy market, the
Group has continued to optimize the cost and business structures
and to seek and explore the expansion of its LNG distribution
channel through proposed collaboration with industry player(s)
and/or state-owned enterprises; foster strategic cooperation with
global renowned oil and gas supplier to facilitate the trading
business of the Group and sought to further expand collaboration
with quality end users of natural gas.

The China government has issued various policies, including “The
13th 5-Year Plan on Natural Gas Development” and “Opinions
on Accelerating the Promotion of Natural Gas Utilisation” which
states the objective to increase the percentage of natural gas
consumption in primary energy mix to around 10% by 2020. It is
clearly that natural gas will be one of the dominant energy sources
in the energy consumption market.
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Chairman Statement
FTEmRE

Following with the energy revolution, China will continue the
supply-side structural reform and implementing the green and
low-carbon energy strategy, the energy market in which the Group
operates, are expected to have a healthy and sustainable growth.

Looking ahead, the management is mindful of the market
environment and will continue to adopt cautionary steps in and
implementing various to mitigate the adverse impact on the
business arising from challenges as in this market condition.
Moreover, the Group will continues to develop its business in
natural gas sector and to explore new business opportunities in
order to create value for its shareholders.

On behalf of the board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
support. | would also like to express my appreciation to our
management team and all staff for their outstanding contributions
and hard work over the past year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review
AREBE - ERE &N IO EE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Group results

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and at present, the Group has
been principally engaged in (i) trading of oil and gas products and
the provision of related consultancy services; and (ii) processing,
distribution, sales, trading and transportation of LNG and other
auxiliary operations and networks in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB8,150 million
(2017: approximately RMB7,973 million) with profit after tax of
approximately RMB173 million (2017: loss of approximately RMB105
million). The Group's performance for the year ended 31 March
2018 was contributed mainly by the production and sales of LNG
and the trading of oil and gas business.

The Group's financial results achieved turnaround from a loss last
year to a profit this year is mainly due to supply side structural
reform in natural gas market and optimization of energy market (as
further elaborated under the sections headed “Production and
sales of LNG” and “Oil and gas transactions”).

Production and sales of LNG

During the year, the Group produced approximately 447 million
cubic meters of LNG, representing an increase of approximately
6 million cubic meters or 1.4% compared with the last year. The
turnover from the sales of LNG business for the year ended
31 March 2018 was approximately RMB1,596 million representing a
decrease of approximately RMB14 million or 0.9% compared with
the last year, contributing approximately 19.6% of the total turnover
of the Group. Gross profit, increased by approximately RMB202
million to approximately RMB221 million (2017: approximately
RMB19 million), gross profit margin, increase from approximately
1.2% to approximately 13.9%.

The significant increase in gross profit margin for the year ended
31 March 2018 was predominantly due to (i) the implementation
of the “coal to gas” policy with the promotion of the utilization
of natural gas lead to a rapid growth in the consumption demand
for natural gas in China; and (ii) the continuous accelerating the
supply-side structure reform (e.g. pricing) by the PRC government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review
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Oil and gas transactions

During the year, revenue arising from oil and gas transactions
increased to approximately RMB6,334 million from approximately
RMB6,183 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB151 million or 2.4% compared with the last year, contributing
approximately 77.7% of the total turnover of the Group. Gross
profit, however, decreased to approximately RMB15 million from
approximately RMB22 million, with gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 0.4% to approximately 0.2% as a result of the
fluctuation of oil and gas prices at the industry low range.

Prospect

Along with the continuous adjustment of energy consumption
structure and promotion of the clean energy, the development of
the natural gas industry and demand of natural gas will maintain
steady growth. The Group expects that the reforms in the natural
gas market would be conducive to the market environment, in
which the Group operates.

The management is mindful of the market environment and
will continue to adopt cautionary steps and implement various
strategies to mitigate the adverse impact on the business arising
from challenges as in this market condition. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to develop its businesses in natural gas sector
and to explore new business opportunities in order to create value
for its shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
approximately RMB8,150 million (2017: approximately RMB7,973
million). The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the
increase in the revenue from the oil and gas transaction of which
reported a turnover of approximately RMB6,334 million during the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: approximately RMB6,183 million).

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 was approximately
RMB261 million (2017: approximately RMB62 million). The increase
in gross profit was primarily due to the increase of LNG price.
Accordingly, the Group's gross profit margin for the year ended
31 March 2018 increased from approximately 0.8% (year ended
31 March 2017) to approximately 3.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review
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Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2018 was approximately
RMB92 million (2017: approximately RMB12 million). The increase
in other income is mainly due to the interest income and non-
recurring damages claim from deposit paid for acquisition of an
associate.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended
31 March 2018 amounted to approximately RMB87 million
(2017: approximately RMB73 million), representing an increase
of approximately 19.5% as compared to the previous year. The
increase was due to the suspension of LNG production plant
resulted from control of gas supply from upstream supplier
which part of the fixed production costs (i.e. labour salaries and
deprecation etc.) were treated as administrative expenses in the
suspension period.

Finance Costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately RMB23 million
during the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: approximately RMB43
million), representing a decrease of approximately 44.7%. The
decrease was mainly due to the redemption of the convertible
bond and repayment of part of bank borrowings during the year.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group is subjected to taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC due
to its business operations in these jurisdictions. For the year ended
31 March 2018, income tax expenses of the Group approximately
RMB39 million (2017: approximately RMB14 million). The increase
was mainly due to an increase in the taxable income.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2018, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash of approximately RMB50 million (2017: approximately RMB463
million).

The net current liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2018
were approximately RMB19 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB124 million compared with the last year
(2017: approximately RMB143 million). The current ratio was
approximately 0.99 (2017: approximately 0.92).
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review
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Notwithstanding the net current liabilities of the Group at
31 March 2018, the management are confident that the Group
would have adequate funds to meet its obligation, as and when
they fall due, having regard to the following:

(i) the available loan facilities of RMB632 million, RMB214 million
and RMB120 million with maturity up to September 2018,
November 2018 and February 2019, respectively; and

(i) the issue of two-year secured guaranteed notes of HK$300
million (equivalent to RMB243 million) in May 2018 with
maturity up to April 2020.

The Group will further improve its financial position in order to
improve liquidity and cash flows by implementing a number of
measures, including but not limited to, raising further medium to
long term banking facilities and rolling over short term banking
facilities to medium term when they fall due.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB588 million which are due within one year and approximately
RMB35 million which are repayable after one year. The gearing
ratio, which is debt-to-equity ratio, of the Group was approximately
0.4 as at 31 March 2018 compared to approximately 0.4 as at
31 March 2017.

Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital expenditure for purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB26 million (2017: approximately
RMB18 million) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had pledged assets in an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB765 million (2017:
approximately RMB717 million) to banks for banking facilities.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2018,
commitments.

the Group had no material capital
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group issued financial guarantee to the
banks in respect of bank loans obtained by associates of RMB135
million (2017: RMB135 million), representing the amount that could
be required to be paid if the guarantee was called upon in entirety
by the bank.

Treasury Policy

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and US Dollar. The exposure
of exchange fluctuation in respect of HKD, RMB and US Dollar
could affect the Group's performance and asset value. However,
there are no significant differences of the carrying amount of the
monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated in US Dollar
so the Group has not experienced any material difficulties and
liquidity problems resulting from currency exchange fluctuations.
The Group still monitors the overall currency exposures.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had about 450 employees (2017:
about 470). The remuneration packages are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group's employees are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors.
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Corporate Governance Report
rRERAMS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to maintain good corporate governance standard and procedures
to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended
31 March 2018, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board
will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code"). Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of Six Directors,
including three executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors (the "INEDs"”). The Directors are, collective
and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
One of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 27 to 30.
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TRERME

The Board members during the year ended 31 March 2018 and as
at the date up to this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year
at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board
meetings that are required for significant and important issues, and
for statutory purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is
provided to the Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the Group's latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board held seven meetings and the

attendance of the directors at the Board Meetings for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out as below:

Name of Directors

HE_Z-)/\F=ZA=+—HBILEFEKEZRE
AHRERMZEEFENER:

BITEE
FRBEE(ZFERITHRAR)
RELE
E 2k

BUFHTEE
REAEL
BZBITE
AL

GHRBARBEEHEUALEZEBOMET
CEMEEE GRS BEFEBFELE
THREERHE KHOEBFHET K-
EEeREFSERERBERRARZE
B AERETHRASB Z&MER K
MAEPDREETHBRE -

FA EFECRTLREE MREE
“E-\F-ZA=TBLEFEREFLE
E=ZggRZBREAINMT

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EEna HERY S@KY
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman and Chief TRBRE(FEFRITHAE)

Executive Officer) 7/7
Mr. Bao Jun RELE 7/7
Mr. Zhou Jian B2 kA 7/7
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEBITEESE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RIGRAEL 7/7
Mr. Wong Chi Keung B REE 717
Mr. Tom Xie R LE 7/7

Board minutes are recorded in appropriate details and draft
minutes are circulated to all directors and committee members
for comments before being approved by the Board at the next
immediate meeting. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the directors.
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The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and oversees the Group's business, strategic decisions and
financial performance. The Board directly, and indirectly through
its committees, leads and provides direction to management
by laying down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
monitors the Group's operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems
are in place. The Board delegates to the management team the
day-to-day management of the Company’s business including the
preparation of annual and interim reports, and for implementation
of internal control, risk management system, business strategies
and plans developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other except those
disclosed in the director biographical details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company, notwithstanding that every Director shall be retired at
least once every three years.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill causal vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
On the other hand, paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules provides that such directors are to hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting. As mentioned in the
annual report for FY2006, the Board decided to leave the existing
Bye-laws unchanged given the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27 January 2011
and was appointed the chief executive officer ("CEQ") of the
Company on 15 September 2011. He is responsible for managing
the Board and the business of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge in
the business of the Group. The present structure is more suitable
to the Company because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Company's strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee, balance of
power and authority can be ensured and there is no imminent need
to change the arrangement.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. Every director is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, relevant materials including regulatory updates have been
provided to the directors for their reference and study.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view and
recommendations of the three committees ensure proper control
of the Group and the continual achievement of the high standard
corporate governance practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee (the
"RC") comprises three Independent non-executive directors,
namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom
Xie.

The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

1. to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, employment conditions, and
responsibilities, and individual performance of the directors
and senior management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; and implement the remuneration policy
laid down by the Board, if any;

2. to consult the chairman and/or chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors. The
remuneration committee should have access to independent
professional advice if necessary;

3. without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@)  make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration;

(b)  review and approve the management’s remuneration
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;
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determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the Group,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

determine the criteria for assessing employee's
performance, which should reflect the Company's
business goals, objectives and targets;

to ensure that no director or any of his associate is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

engage external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Committee on issues if necessary;

do any such things to enable the Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by
the Board;

conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation;
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(m) exercise such other powers, authorities and discretion,
and perform such other duties, of the directors
in relation to the remuneration as the Board may
from time to time delegate to it, have regard to the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

(n)  advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any
service contracts of directors that require shareholders'’
approval under the Listing Rules as amended from time
to time.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice relating to
remuneration proposal if considered necessary. The RC has begun
to review the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management.

The RC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March
2018 to discuss and approve the Directors’ and management'’s
remuneration for the year. The attendance of the members is as
follows:

Name of Members

(m) REEESTHZRER EHH
AMEREARATANRERE
EZFMEBEETEE MR
7 BERBIEE YETHE
T %

(n)  RETEEETZ EHRRAFRRR
§22 % 10 ) A A ] B BRAS AR R AE
ENEERBAAETROR

ERBULAZERT  HFMEZEEH#E
FHERSKEXER FMEZBEECH
AEMNEENSMEBABZHMBE

HE_Z-N\F=ZA=+—HILFE  FM
ZEgCRIT—XRed AWkt EES
REBBRAFEZHM KELFEBR
LU

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

P A=k $ HERE GEAH
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGRHIEL 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB EE(EE) 11
Mr. Tom Xie HEFEEE 1/1
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the "AC")
comprises three Independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr.
Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

(a) to be responsible for making recommendations to the board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b)  to review with the group’s management and external auditor,
the adequacy of the group’s policies and procedures
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational
and compliance controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors to be included in the annual
accounts prior to endorsement by the board,;

(c)  to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Committee should
understand the factors considered by the external auditors
in determining their audit scope, and should discuss with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commencement. The
external auditors’ fees is to be negotiated by management,
and presented to the Committee for review and approval
annually;

(d) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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to review the Company’s financial information and to
monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.
In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board,
the Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v}  compliance with accounting and auditing standards;
and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

with regard to (e) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must
meet, at least twice a year, with the external auditor;
and

(i) the Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company's staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;

to review the Company's financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company's risk
management and internal control systems;
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to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;
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to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relation with the external auditor, and to
evaluate the cooperation received by the external auditors,
including their access to all requested records, data and
information; obtain the comments of management regarding
the responsiveness of the external auditors to the Group's
needs; inquire of the external auditors as to whether there
have been any disagreements with management which if not
satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a qualified
report on the group’s financial statements;

to obtain from the external auditors annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining independence
and monitoring compliance with relevant requirements,
including provision of non-audit services and requirements
regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to discuss with the external auditors any recommendations
arising from the audit (if necessary in the absence of
management);

to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in the absence
of management to discuss matters relating to its audit fees,
any issue arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise;

to the engagement of the external auditors to perform non-
audit services is in general prohibited except for tax-related
services. If a compelling reason exists to engage the external
auditors due to their unique expertise in a particular area,
the prior approval of the Committee is required;

to review and consider the findings of internal investigations
and management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements
of laws, rules and regulations;

to agree with the Board the Company’s policy relating to
the hiring of employees or former employees of the external
auditors and monitor the applications of such policy. The
Committee shall consider whether as a result of such hiring
there has been any impairment of the auditor’s judgment or
independence in respect of an audit;
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(v)  to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(w) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity and
seek any information it requires within its term of reference. It
is also authorized to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to invite the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the AC is
dedicated to review and supervise the Group's financial reporting
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process and internal controls. The financial results for the year - BHZ2ZT—/\F=A=+—HLFEZ
ended 31 March 2018 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. MBEECLCHEZZE®EH -
The AC conducts at least two regular meetings a year in addition BRBEAREEZESBURETEBNEAESRT
to other meetings that are required for significant and important 2 Bt ’23%% CERZZEeBFE LR
issues, and for statutory purposes. PN
The AC has held two meetings during the year ended 31 March HE-Z- \F=ZA=+—"HLFE %
2018 and the attendance of the members is as follows: ZEBERTRAGZ  KELFEBRLW
Number of attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
BEHE HERY E@RY
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RBRAE L 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BEIREE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Tom Xie SR E 2/2
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the AC had reviewed RBE_T-\F=ZA=+—HLFE &
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018 *ZE;;E@E%FEJZ’S’AT@ —E-\F=H

and the interim report for the six months ended 30 September
2017. The AC had also reviewed the risk management report on
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.
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Nomination Committee

As at
comp

the date of this report, the Nomination Committee (the “NC")
rises Mr. Wang Jianging, the chairman and the executive

director of the Company and two Independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

(a)

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
Sufficient biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to enable
them to make an informed decision;

to make recommendations to the Board the appointment or
re-appointment of directors of the Company and succession
planning for directors of the Company in particular the
chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of directors for the Board's approval;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;

to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge
its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.
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The NC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March
2018 to discuss and review the structure, size and composition of
the Board. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

HE_Z—-N\FZA=Z+T—HLFE &%
ZERCBRTREH HARERRTES
EHRE ABRKE - KEHFEBRW
T

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

HERY EERH

HEHE

Mr. Wang Jianging TRRERE

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RBAE L

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB EE(EE)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standard. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statement of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 44 to 52.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 March 2018, fees payable to the auditor of
the Group for audit services was approximately RMB1,200,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as a reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established the risk management organizational
framework, which comprises of the Board, the audit committee
and the risk management group. The Board will assess and
determine the nature and extent of risks acceptable for the Group
in fulfilling its strategic goals, and will ensure the establishment
and maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems by the Group. The Board will also
supervise the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems by the management.

The Group has also formulated and adopted the enterprise risk
management system, which provides effective policy procedures
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The risk
management group will, at least once in a year, identify risk
exposures that may affect the realization of the Group's business
target, assess and rank the risks through a standard mechanism,
formulate a risk mitigation plan and identify staff held accountable
for the risks, enabling the Group to make rational allocation of
resources to cope with the major risks.

Furthermore, the Group has established internal audit function, so
as to help the Board and the audit committee to constantly monitor
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify defects in the design and operation of the internal control
and put forward proper remedies. Serious defects identified in the
internal control will be reported to the audit committee and the
Board promptly, and efforts will be made to formulate the remedial
plan and identify the staff to be held accountable. In addition,
timely follow-up will be carried out to ensure improvement of the
situation.
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Risk management report and internal audit report will, at least on
a yearly basis, be submitted to the audit committee for review
before submission to the Board for final approval. The Board
has conducted annual review on the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems, including changes in the
nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
the ability of the Group to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment, the scope and quality of management's
ongoing monitoring of risks and the internal control system,
the work of internal audit function, the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Board, significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified during
the period and the relevant impacts, as well as the effectiveness
of the Group's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance, and determined the effectiveness of the existing risk
management and internal control systems.

The above-mentioned risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage but not to eliminate the risk of
failing to fulfill the business target. Therefore, these systems can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that there will
not be material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention, unless it falls within the
Securities and Futures Ordinance safe harbours. The Group will
ensure the confidentiality of such information before full disclosure
of such information to the public. Where the Group considers
it impossible to maintain confidentiality as required, or the
information may have been divulged, the Group will disclose such
information to the public in no time. However, the Group will make
sure that the information contained in the announcement is not
false or misleading as to a material fact, or is false or misleading
due to the omission of a material fact, enabling the public to obtain
inside information in an equal, timely and effective manner.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to F.1.2 of the Code, the appointment of the company
secretary should be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution. The appointment of the current company
secretary was dealt with by a written resolution in September 2013.
The Board considers that, prior to the execution of the written
resolution to appoint the current company secretary, all Directors
were individually consulted on the matter without any dissenting
opinion and there was no need to approve the matter by a physical
board meeting instead of a written resolution.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate with
shareholders and investors, the board and the Company maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders mainly through the
Company's financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings.

The Company also maintains a website at http:/www.yuanhenggas.com
as one of communication channel for the shareholders and
investors. For any enquiries, the shareholders, the investors, media
or the public may contact the Company directly, contact details
of which are posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company held an

annual general meeting. The attendance of the directors at the
meetings was as follows:

Name of Directors
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Number of Meetings

EEnE HERE S@ZKY
Mr. Wang Jianging FRELEE 0/1
Mr. Bao Jun REFLE 1/1
Mr. Zhou Jian i 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFRITES

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGRHIEL 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung B2k E 11
Mr. Tom Xie AR L 11
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by
shareholders

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting
to which the requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100)
shareholders may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting;

(b)  to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquires to the board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquires to the Company by post or
delivery to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 4102, 41/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianqing

Mr. Wang, aged 49, has extensive experience and business
network in the energy and trading industry. Mr. Wang obtained
his Bachelor's degree in Industrial Management Engineering
from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding College (now known as the Jiangsu
University of Science and Technology).

Mr. Wang was the chairman and executive director of FU JI Food
and Catering Services Holdings Limited (now known as Fresh
Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd.) (stock Code: 1175)
(retired on 24 September 2014). He is also the general manager of
Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd.

Mr. Wang is a cousin of Mr. Bao Jun, an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Bao, aged 50, has over 20 years of experience in project
investment, construction and operation management. He obtained
his bachelor degree in Engineering from Jiangnan University
(formerly known as Wuxi Polytechnic University) in 1989. Mr. Bao
joined Guangdong Light Industry Design Institute as an engineer
from 1989 to 2000 and was responsible for the research and
development of the manufacturing technique of various biological-
engineering and chemical engineering projects such as the design
and management of amino acids production plant and brewery.

Mr. Bao is a cousin of Mr. Wang Jianging, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou, age 45, holds a Master’s degree in Economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics, the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading during his
service in China National United Qil Corporation as well as the fuel
oil spot and future markets managing of its branches in Asia and
America. He was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution divisions. Mr. Zhou
has over 15 years of extensive working experience in energy field
with broad business network, and is familiar with global energy
environment and market.
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He also has been in the position of independent non-executive
director for Tack Fiori International Group Limited (now known
as Life Healthcare Group Limited) (Stock Code: 928) since
12 September 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, aged 50, has extensive knowledge and
experience in risk management of financial instruments, treasury
business and financial derivative products. He has served DBS
Bank for eight years and was Senior Vice President in the Treasury
and Markets Division upon his departure from the bank on 22 May
2009. Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry in 1996
with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity Derivatives Asia
Department. He had served a few other financial institutes before
joining DBS Bank Ltd as a financial product specialist as well and
had held various roles in business development, trading and risk
management.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese nationality,
holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree of Science (1990)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of
Science in Mathematics (1993) and a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Mathematics (1996) from the California Institute of Technology,
and a Master degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

He also has been in the position of independent non-executive
director for FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited
(now known as Fresh Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd.)
(Stock Code: 1175) since 8 July 2013.
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Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong, aged 63, holds a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and CPA Australia; an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a
Responsible Officer for asset management and advising on
securities for CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK) Company
Limited, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy general
manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou
Investment Company Limited) (stock code: 123), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, for over ten years. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), China Ting Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3398), Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (stock
code: 1039), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code:
3308), Nickel Resources International Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as China Nickel Resources Holdings Company
Limited) (stock code: 2889), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code:
617), Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (stock code: 78),
TPV Technology Limited (stock code: 903) and Zhuguang Holdings
Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 1176), all of these companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wong has over 38 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-
executive director of ENM Holdings Limited (stock code: 128)
(retired on 9 June 2017), Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8046) (resigned on 19 September 2017) and China Shanshui
Cement Group Limited (stock code: 691) from 2 February 2016
to 23 May 2018, all of these companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Wong was also a Responsible Officer for Greater China
Capital Limited (resigned on 16 April 2016), responsible for asset
management, advising on securities and advising on corporate
finance, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Tom Xie
Mr. Xie, aged 67, has years of management experience with a Hong
Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a Master's
Graduation Certificate in Gemology, both from China University of
Geosciences (Beijing) in 2012.

Mr. Xie was appointed as independent non-executive director
of U-Right International Holdings Limited (now known as Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited) (stock code: 627) from
29 August 2013 to 1 December 2017, the company is listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Xie is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out
in note 50 and note 22 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion
on the Group's future business development and an analysis
of the Group's performance during the year using key financial
performance indicators are provided in the “Chairman Statement”
on pages 2 to 3 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis
of the Group Financial Review” on pages 4 to 8 of this Annual
Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in notes 44 and
45 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 150 to 163
of this Annual Report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 March 2018, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Environmental protection

The Group understands that its business has an impact on
the environment and recognises the importance of sound
environmental management practices and sustainable business
operations. It is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations as set by the government in People's Republic of China
("PRC") and Hong Kong.

For more details regarding the Company’s environmental policies
and practices, please refer to the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” which will be published within three months
after the publication of this Annual report on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationships with employees, customers and suppliers

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
and business associates are key stakeholders to the Group's
success. It strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging its employees, providing quality products and services
to its customers, collaborating with business partners (including
suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality products and services
and supporting our community.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
will be published within three months after the publication of this
Annual report on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 53.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company's authorised, issued and fully paid
share capital are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2018.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at end of the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wang Jianging
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-laws, one
third of directors for the time being shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3. 13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent

non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b)
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers).

EERFETBRASRKMG -
R REEEZESZRER

RZE—\F=ZA=+—"H8 ARQRASES
K E ZTEABRAR R S AE A 18 B X B
(EBHEHLEEN(ESRBERG])
EXVEFTIE T2 RE) 2IRH - BERMND R
BHEET HHQAZENRBIEEZESLE
‘ffl7:<1§IJ%3521IxZiE AFBEZERMAZ
BmEkAE HO)AREETETAES
LTTa’i%ﬁ&%Zﬁ SR BTMEARQT]
RERZ Tz m RABIT »

Number of Shares held

it 8B
Percentage
Capacity/ Long Short of total
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position holding
FRAY
EEns B fEnE 3a KRB Bt
(Note 2)
(BF5E2)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 3,609,587,824 — 55.38%
corporation (Note 1)
g =9 RErEERE (M
Bao Jun Beneficial interest 45,000,000 — 0.69%
RE EmER
Note: Bt 7
1. Mr. Wang Jianging was deemed interested in, and duplicated, the 1. TERBAERE RN BEERRAFTNEEER 2

2,973,083,473 shares which Champion Ever Limited was interested, the
586,486,402 shares which Galaxy King Limited was interested, and the
50,017,949 shares which Champion Golden Limited was interested. Champion
Golden Limited is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Jianging. Both Champion Ever
Limited and Galaxy King Limited are wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

2. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2018, i.e. 6,518,338,952 shares of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, none of the directors of the Company had
any interests in respect of options to subscribe for the shares of
the Company under the Company’s share option scheme approved
and adopted on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading "Directors’ rights to
acquire shares”, none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for shares of
the Company, or had exercised any such right during the vyear,
and at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than as set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements and as disclosed under the heading “Related party
transactions and other disclosures”, no transactions, arrangement
or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had entered into
the following transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

1. On 22 August 2017, BEMITFMREMR DA (Guangzhou
Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited*) (“Yuanheng Gas"), a wholly-
owned foreign enterprise established under the laws of
the PRC and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a renewed supply agreement
("Renewed GG Supply Agreement”) with Guizhou Gas
(Group) Co., Ltd* (BN R (EB) BEREFE2AF]) (“"Guizhou
Gas”) for supply of LNG to Guizhou Gas, its subsidiaries
and its associates (collectively “GG Group”) for a term of 3
years up to 31 March 2020. Guizhou Gas holds 50% interests
in EMEFREIRIEEBR QA (Guizhou Huaheng Energy
Investments Co., Ltd*) (“Huaheng Energy”), a company
established under the laws of the PRC and indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company where the Company
indirectly holds the remaining 50% interests in it. Therefore,
Guizhou Gas is a connected person of the Company.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap
for the Renewed GG Supply Agreement:

FAEXSRFHFERAERS

RAREE KRR REMBARTEEISI AT
X5 WMERXSIRE ETRNEMAZEER
ARRIZHERERS -

1.

—E—+ENA+=-R EMNT=
MRER2AT(TFHRE] —HRE
FEBUERKR I ZINEBELE T A
ARARZEEZENBRARDRRAE
MAR(EBE)BREME AR (E MR
R -HEWBRARREBEAL (5
[EMRAEE])HEREXARHA
EMRRTT—DEEHEERZ(E
BEMRIHERE])  BE=F
BE_Z_FF=A=+—Hik-&
MARRBEEMNEZEREEBRR
Al ([E=R] —BRERBAZEK
N Z AR ANARZMEIEE B
BRAE - MARRBEFHAELT50%
TRER)S0%ER - FI - SMNKRE A
AAFZEEAL -

TREJNEBEEMNRRHE R ZF
B EIR4ER:

Annual cap

FEELR
RMB
AR

From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 RZE—tFMA—RBZE
—E-NF=ZA=1+—H 160,000,000

From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 RZE-N\FHNA—HBZE
—E-nF=A=+—H 220,000,000

From 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 RZE-NFNA-—HBZE
—E-EF=A=+—H 300,000,000

The total sale of natural gas products to members of
the GG Group from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 was
RMB145,287,000.
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2. On 22 August 2017, Yuanheng Gas entered into a renewed 2. 73/\ —+tFNAZTZH =M
purchase agreement (“Renewed GG Purchase Agreement”) Eal E‘JMK%@EXE aAmEMRRER
with Guizhou Gas for purchase of natural gas products ﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁétﬁ(@%fﬁ{bi
(including both LNG and natural gas) by members of the ARERAR)EEMBRRITIL—H
Group from members of the GG Group for a term of 3 years Eit BEmR(EBEEMNREBED
up to 31 March 2020. w1 RR=F BEE-Z_TF=A
_‘1’ HiE -
The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap TERBNEEEMNRRBERZE 2F
for the Renewed GG Purchase Agreement: ELR4BE:
Annual cap
FELR
RMB
AR
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 R-ZE—+FHWHA—-HBZE
—N\#F=ZA=+—H 170,000,000
From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 RZE-NFMNA—HZ
—NLF=A=+—H 210,000,000
From 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 R-ZE-NFEA—RZE
—E-FEF=-A=+—H 270,000,000
The total purchase of natural gas products from members RZE—+FOA-—BEFT-N\F
of the GG Group from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 was —A=t—HREMRAEEKER
RMB151,493,000. ABBEZRARAREMBERARE
151,493,0007T °
The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and ﬁi#iﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁjiﬁ@*’ REHE
confirmed that the above continued connected transactions FRET S 2 L35 B B i
have been entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (i) TR—MBEATEBBEF:
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (i) TR EERKEEER
AR
(iiiy  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing (i) TRBHEEAXZMEET MR
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the SERBRATEE  WHEARD
interests of the Company and the shareholders of the AIRERR BENLG -

Company as a whole.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions set out above
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the following findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

(i)  the transactions have received the approval of the
Board of Directors of the Company;

(i) the transactions were in all material respects in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve provision of good or services by
the Group;

(i)  the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) the transactions have not exceeded the cap disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 22 August
2017.

There are no other connected transactions which are
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with respect to continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Company and the Group during the year ended
31 March 2018.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2018, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company whose interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company are disclosed in the section headed "Directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above) had interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register to

FERREEMALTZRHGRHE

B B 1 2 I ik 2 K BB

RZFB-N\F=ZA=1+—H REARARIE
Erk BERPIEIGRFE ZE MM
BoTMIBRMPEXEEREZTHA
B - HERDRERRE S LR
BI—HAMBRERARB RN - HEBKND
LEEETHRBERGMABNESTHAR
A EZITBABRINRARR I K1

be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: Mt R A
Number of Shares held
FRif ik 8B
Percentage
Capacity/ Long Short of total
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest position position holding
HIREE
BRERE L Sip HEME 5= KRB Bkt
(Note 7)
(P 3%7)
Champion Ever Limited Beneficial interest (Note 1) 2,973,083,473 — 45.61%
72 E A R AT T (kD
Galaxy King Limited Beneficial interest (Note 2) 586,486,402 — 9.00%
Galaxy King Limited EamEm (M a2)
Cheng Xu Family interest (Note 3) 3,609,587,824 — 55.38%
(EXES R & = (M 5E3)
China Construction Security interest (Note 4) 3,192,950,838 — 48.98%
Bank Corporation
FREEREITROERAA 7 2= (P 524)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd Security interest (Note 4) 3,192,950,838 — 48.98%
FRIESIEEEREMERA 7 2= (P 524)
Eight International Group Beneficial interest (Note 5) 331,000,000 — 5.08%
Limited
Eight International Group B &5 1 % (P 5E5)
Limited
Zong Aolei Interest in controlled 331,000,000 — 5.08%
corporation (Note 5)
Zong Aolei A E (D)
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Number of Shares held

Fi¥ i 1 8 B
Percentage
Capacity/ Long Short of total
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest position position holding
FRE A
BREZE & Sin HEEME L5 KA Bk
(Note 7)
(P 5£7)
Fundfleet Investment Limited Beneficial interest (Note 6) 503,703,704 — 7.73%
Partnership
Fundfleet Investment Limited H = 4 = (P 5F6)
Partnership
New Sunshine Global Limited Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.73%
(as Limited Partner) corporation (Note 6)
New Sunshine Global Limited VA E R (M FEe)
(ERBREZA)
Zhou Guofeng Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.73%
corporation (Note 6)
Zhou Guofeng ZEEE R (M 5Te)
Wealth Bloom Investment Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.73%
Limited (as General Partner) corporation (Note 6)
FEERERBR AR VA E R (M FEe)
HER—MERA)
SFUND International Investment Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.73%
Fund Management Limited corporation (Note 6)
BMNESHEBEREREES AR A E R (M FEe)
EEERAF
BMERREREKREES Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.73%
EEBRAF corporation (Note 6)
BMERKEREREES VA E R (M FEe)
EEERAF
BME R /A iR EER Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.73%
BRAFA corporation (Note 6)
& M 5 2 B Al ¥ IR E T AR SR AE R (M FEe)
BRAFA
BMNEXEREESER Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.73%

BRAT]
EMNEXREESER
BRAA]

corporation (Note 6)
R EE R (56)
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Note:

1. Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

2. Galaxy King Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

3. Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianging and is deemed interested in,

and duplicated, the interests Mr. Wang is interested in.

4. Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, CCB International Overseas
Limited is wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which in turn
is wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn is held as to
57.31% by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. All above interests duplicate each

other.

5. Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Eight International Group
Limited is wholly owned by Zong Aolei. All above interests duplicate each
other.

6. Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Fundfleet Investment Limited

Partnership is held as to 55% by New Sunshine Global Limited (as Limited
Partner) and 45% by Wealth Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner).
New Sunshine Global Limited (as Limited Partner) is wholly owned by Zhou
Guofeng. Wealth Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner) is wholly
owned by SFUND International Investment Fund Management Limited, which
in turn is wholly owned by E/NER X ERERERE S BE AR AQF, which
in turn is held as to 95% by E M &l & g 8] ¥ % E 1= KRB R A7), which in
turn is wholly owned by BMEXKEESERFRAF. All above interests
duplicate each other.

7. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2018, i.e. 6,518,338,952 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

it 2

1. BEARARHBERBELLELENRS

2. Galaxy King Limited R E B2/FHRET EWA ©

3. BZIRIRBLEECRBREERANELE

AR RO RS -

4. XEEE}%%E’U%EHE?%'E%E%??I\HBE
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Investment Limited PartnershipfENew Sunshine
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—H 2B ETRA(BIAR 65183389520 Ix
MFERFL -
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company's bye-laws, the directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any willful negligence, willful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attached to any of them.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force and was
in force throughout the financial year.

The Company has purchased the directors’ liability insurance to
provide protection against claims arising from the lawful discharge
of duties by the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group's major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Ft &F BE 18 4% 3

RIBARRR ZRAR4HAFE166(1) & » EER]
WARB ZEE R mMESHREE  gfHK
HEEMALEKATERKBREENTES
ZBBERIELEMNT A BEX PN
EEAFTHEBRB BB EMUEE LR
BFH KA BRH - BX - BEERHAX
AERERERLUZEMEBE  HIHBET
S1E 2= BT ] A L ATRE 4 T8 LA 2 T fal iR
BERA - HEEY HHFITHEEE - B
B8 70 BT B (B R SR B AR AR D A B E B B
E—EBM -

ARFCRBEEREERR  RESKEE
BARTARELANBEETRHARE -

TERFRRMER
AEEEEEFR GG F RS
RERBEZEHLMT

Sales SHEH %
— The largest customer — AR 24
— Five largest customers aggregated — hREP &R 71
Purchases REH %
— The largest suppliers — BRAEER 33
— Five largest suppliers aggregated — ERHEREAET 82

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company,
the directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS
LIMITED

T RRERBERLQF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 53 to 170,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BUIZERIRES

Key audit matter
FAREXEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAERMAREXER

Impairment of goodwill

2 i E

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to significant judgement and estimation
involved in the preparation of the discounted cash flows
used in the impairment assessment.
AITHBERESN R BEAREZEE RARREH
WMEGEMARRRAESRER PR E XA LG -

The Group has goodwill arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries in previous years amounted to
RMB56,740,000 before impairment as at 31 March 2018.
The management is required to test for impairment of
goodwill on an annual basis by comparing the recoverable
amount and the carrying amount of the cash generating
unit to which such goodwill has been allocated. As at
31 March 2018, the accumulated impairment loss on
goodwill amounted to RMB22,670,000 as set out in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.
RZZE-N\F=ZRA=+—0  EREMERBEFEWEN
BorrmELN EXEEEERARKS6,740,0007T - &
BERSFETREBRENS DERBESKEMEE
ZREeELABUNAIRESREREAEETLR - B0
e BmRHFE20ME - R2F-\F=ZA=1+—H "
BE R EEE S ARK22,670,0007T -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
goodwill included:

AITERBERENERF SR :

Understanding the relevant key controls over the
assessment of impairment of goodwill;

THRARBERENGEOHEEERIES

Evaluating the independent external valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

B SN B E R A B BE - BB RF B

Obtaining the discounted cash flow analysis
of the relevant asset or cash generating unit
prepared by the management and checking its
mathematical accuracy;
ERERERUNEAEES RS ELEMMNE
RESRESMUARH LB ERE ML

Engaging our internal valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of the discount rate used;

ZEAFGEERFHAAMRINEE K

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow analysis, including growth rates, estimated
average purchase price of natural gas and
average selling price of liquefied natural gas with
reference to the historical sales volume, revenue,
cost of sales, operating expenses and future
strategic plans of the Group;

HEMRESREINMTARAARBRERNSIE
1t BEL2E SEEARHE WH HE
B BRI MR RREE S SRS HAIEREK
AARGATFHBEEBRBRLERARFIERE:
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Key audit matter
FAREXEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAERMAREXER

In determining the recoverable amount, the Group
engaged an independent external valuer to assist in
assessing the value in use of the cash generating unit by
discounting the estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash generating unit to the present value.
Significant judgment and assumptions were required in
the process such as the use of discount rates, growth
rates, estimated average purchase price of natural
gas and average selling price of liquefied natural gas
during the forecast period as set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REERIKEERHEE X BEEEZE-R2BIIGMEE
B B EReELABEMNEREE HERERE
ELBNAEHELENRBAARARREREMRERE - &
WERE M B RRM ESHE - ZBIEF2ELEXRHEH K&
BR - MRBRAAAARNZBRBEER BRE - RARMGF
HEBEERBIERARTFHEE -
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Testing data inputs in the discounted cash
flow analysis, on a sample basis, against source
documents;

4 BEIR IR & 8 9 AT B B R &Y B A BUR BR S
HEATHI R L ¥

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow analysis made by
management by comparing the historical analysis
made against the actual performance of the
Group; and

BRALBAEBESNE BESREERRKRRE
HEEEBREMERRBESREDITHEREIE:
P54

Assessing whether the disclosures of impairment
testing in the consolidated financial statements
are sufficient and appropriate.

HEGEMBREABENRENARES TR ME
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Key audit matter
FAREXEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAERMAREXER

Measurement of the fair value of the available-for-sale investment and the recoverable amount of deposit

paid for acquisition of an associate

AFERMEMBATATHEEREZAFEUAMBBE—EAREATAIAZEENTREEEE

We identified the measurement of the fair value of
the available-for-sale investment and the recoverable
amount of deposit paid for acquisition of an associate
as a key audit matter due to their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and
estimations involved in measuring the fair value of such
investment and the recoverable amount of deposit paid
for acquisition of an associate.
RITRAIHEEREN R TFEALSWE —BHE QT
IXNzReNAIRESBFEZNRS —RERERSE
B REARHUSRECHBERRBEREFEZREZA
FEARRKE -—FHBEERFAAXNZEZ2HTKRE S
"5 & B R fhET e

As detailed in notes 5, 24 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group held an available-for-sale
investment which is unlisted and not publicly traded and
a deposit paid for acquisition of an associate amounted
to RMB220,886,000 and RMB190,748,000, respectively, at
the end of the reporting period.

AN 4R A BT TS IR R BT 5ES « 24K 26FTFF A - RIREHIR -
REBFBEILTRIIFAFER 2RI HERE K R
B-EBMERRMMXMN2ES DR A A RK220,886,000
JC A1 A R #190,748,0007T °

The management engaged an independent external
valuer in determining the fair value of the investment and
the recoverable amount of deposit paid for acquisition
of an associate at the end of the reporting period.
Judgement and estimations are required in choosing the
appropriate valuation methodology, adopting the relevant
assumptions and use of market comparable investments
and discount rate on marketability as set out in note 5 of
the consolidated financial statements.
EREREERRERARZREQNFENRN LB KE—H
L RBI XNz RENAIKOERERE — 2B N
HER - HNGEMEHRRMESHE  EFBERES
- BB ERRIAREKATISAIE LRI E A K& E
1 BEIR KB R 4 I R R A AT e

Our procedures in relation to the measurement of the
fair value of the available-for-sale investment and the
recoverable amount of deposit paid for acquisition of
an associate included:
RTEBAFEAHBEEREZATFEUARSEKE —H
ERRMXNZESHO AT KRE S RENEF R :

J Understanding the relevant key controls over
the management review of the valuation of the
available-for-sale investment and the recoverable
amount of deposit paid for acquisition of an
associate;

. THREHAEEEFNIHLEERE ZMEN L
WiE—HBE AR XNz REHAKRE SRR
RS

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuer;

e FIABUINBEEMMRE EORTENL:

. Engaging our internal valuation experts to review
the valuation of the available-for-sale investment
and the recoverable amount of deposit paid for
acquisition of an associate held by the subsidiary
performed by the independent external valuer
and evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the reasonableness of key
assumptions and estimations applied in the
valuation; and

o ZEAMEZRERERIBEILINELEERETTHM
BRAIMFBAHLERENGEEALRKE —H
b & RAIPT SN 2 1R & B AT U B & B8 DA Ke /Y (i 1
BERENEEERGEEMAEIZERR LGNS
B R

o Testing the accuracy and evaluating the relevance
of key data inputs used in the valuation.

o RIFBAREE A BB ER AR EEREED
EVAE R IE -
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Key audit matter
FAREXEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAERMAREXER

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 FE W AR =R (B

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimations involved in
assessing and determining the recoverability of trade
receivables and adequacy of allowance made.
ATHEZGREERTOREBR R —ERAREZER T
HREHGEMERRBEERAF I RTEREEE
SRBER 2 ATREMT RAIEL BB TR -

These estimations include evaluating expected future
receipts from customers based on past payment trend,
age of the debts, and knowledge of the customers’
businesses and financial condition.

ZEMERRBERBEXNBE BEBRERETFH
EBEBBARARD TR ERRKBRERES Z KA -

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had trade receivables
with carrying amount of approximately RMB1,084,114,000.
RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H  EBEXEESFRKRERZE
[ B #) /& A R #1,084,114,0007T °

The key assumptions and estimation on impairment of
trade receivables and the Group's credit risk management
are disclosed in notes 5 and 45(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.
EREZRBEFREZTERRAGFTLE EEEZ
EERREBENES MG ®KMF5R450)HKE -
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Our procedures in relation to impairment of trade
receivables included:

ATEBEZREEFBEZETFERE:

o Understanding how the allowance for doubtful
debts of trade receivables is estimated by the
management;

e THEEENMGBAEIERKERRERE:

o Understanding how the aging analysis of trade
receivables is prepared by the management;

s THREEEBWNFAFERESEBERN KK DN

o Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis of the
trade receivables to the sale invoices, on a sample
basis;

e REHEZEZHEAAZIRUWERNEKRE DM
F) 2 B 1

o Assessing the reasonableness of allowance for

doubtful debts made with reference to business
relationship with customers, credit history, past
settlement records including default or delay in
payments and collections after the end of the
reporting period, for trade receivables from major
customers assessed individually;

e HEBIAGEUKIZEZTFPZEZIERUERME -
DRETFPZEKAERE EFEEL  BEE
RS 8% (B 1R 18 R ST 1B 19 30) i & B R 12 9 Uk
RER - AAEAIERRBEGBOHS L

o Assessing the reasonableness of allowance for
doubtful debts made with reference to the aging
analysis for trade receivables assessed on a
collective basis; and

e HMERFHBEZIRUERME  2ZHRESN
AHEFTERERBEN SR K

o Tracing the subsequent settlements to relevant
documents, on a sample basis.

s HEEMREMEBXHFEREEREBR-
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BUIZERIRES

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial

and for such internal control
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

K Both 2 WA RR X

= \ /
i\‘/T\ ?

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

and Other Comprehensive Income

2018 2017
—E-N\E T—
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'OOO
Pt 5 AREBTR AR T T
Turnover %%%ﬁ 6 8,149,851 7972,843
Operating costs FEE =g DN 7 (7,888,643) (7,911,030
Gross profit £ 7 261,208 61,813
Other income H bt A 9 91,640 12,099
Other gains and losses Hib gz K E 1B 10 (1,878) (7,027)
Impairment loss on goodwill PR R E & B 20 = (22,670)
Distribution and selling expenses DHENEERX (15,305) (10,994)
Administrative expenses TR X (86,862) (72,666)
Share of results of associates i RN E S (12,890) (9,359)
Finance costs BEKAK 11 (23,498) (42,524)
Profit (loss) before tax B 9% B Al (85 18) 212,415 (91,328)
Income tax expense Fr3RiAX 12 (38,977) (13,919)
Profit (loss) for the year F A A (E 1) 13 173,438 (105,247)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for FREMEZ2EFEZ)BA
the year
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to A {& Iéi FHEE
profit or loss: 78 7 415 B
Exchange differences arising on translation ~— E#H /S%%i‘%ﬁﬁ%i
of foreign operations 2 H E R (11,014) 505
Fair value gain on available-for-sale At HEREATE
investment W z= 18,686 =
Deferred tax related to items that may be B @ EHMHEIEE
reclassified G Dol i U SR (4,672) —
3,000 505
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the & A2 W A (5 )
year 48 58 176,438 (104,742)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: ATALREIEFR
5§%‘J(l§ﬁj§\) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE =N 142,060 (84,591)
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR BE 31,378 (20,656)
173,438 (105,247)
Total comprehensive income (expense) IATATEEZEKA
attributable to: (Eﬂi'i)%@%i :
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZ SN 145,060 (84,086)
Non-controlling interests B2 g 31,378 (20,656)
176,438 (104,742)
Earnings (loss) per share (RMB cents) FRAEF (B
(ARES) 17
— Basic - BER 218 (1.48)
— Diluted — BE 217 (1.48)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e B R 0 R R

At 31 March 2018
R-ZF-N\FE=A=+—H

2018 2017
—F—N\EF —E—+tF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARE Tt ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BERRE 18 753,846 788,127
Prepaid lease payments BT E K 19 38,732 37,309
Goodwill EES 20 34,070 34,070
Intangible asset ERAE 21 7,773 8,166
Interests in associates REE AR 2R 22 143,672 136,562
Long-term receivables KEfE W 1A 23 122,717 37,325
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate Ht U B8 — [ B & A &)
Xk e 24 190,748 190,748
Deferred tax assets BEEFIBEE 25 — 576
Available-for-sale investment AHERE 26 220,886 202,200
1,512,444 1,435,083
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Inventories FE 27 21,806 26,784
Trade and other receivables H 5 & Hth e Uk BR X 28 1,669,895 821,839
Prepaid lease payments BT & 19 1,479 1,362
Long-term receivables due within one year M — 4 A2 B/ & B
JE W 3K IE 23 62,915 59,181
Amount due from an associate JiE Uy — fisl Bt & R B FXIE 29 603 —
Amounts due from non-controlling equity  F& U I & A 71 3E 5 A%
owners of subsidiaries oA ARIE 30 1,204 12,810
Amount due from a related party JEW — & A f&
AT I8 31 1,866 1,878
Pledged bank deposits BEREEITER 32 295,916 186,099
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRS 32 50,073 463,222
2,105,757 1,573,175
CURRENT LIABILITIES BB R
Trade payables and other liabilities B HREMNER R
Hih A& 33 1,398,295 1,149,753
Amounts due to associates FEAST B 2 A R FRIE 34 38,505 12,949
Tax payable JE 7 18 100,163 56,915
Bank and other borrowings due R —F R 2| EFE R 1T R
within one year Hih g & 35 587,708 415,708
Convertible bond Al iR E A 37 — 65,200
Embedded derivatives BARPTET A 38 — 15,547
2,124,671 1,716,072
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBBEEFEHE (18,914) (142,897)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDER
LIABILITIES 1,493,530 1,292,186

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T ¥ RIZRAR QA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR A B IR O R

At 31 March 2018
RZF-N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—F—-N\%FE —E—+tF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5 ARE Tt ARET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES % & R 5 6
Share capital fi% 25 36 549,014 549,014
Reserves 1 780,048 634,988
Equity attributable to owners RABIHER ARG ER
of the Company 1,329,062 1,184,002
Non-controlling interests JEIE R E R 116,823 79,645
TOTAL EQUITY iR E 1,445,885 1,263,647
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥REERE
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEAE 25 12,645 4,539
Bank and other borrowings due R—FEIHNRTR
after one year EmEE 35 35,000 24,000
47,645 28,539
1,493,530 1,292,186
The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 170 were EREEFINEZEAUBRRERN -

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

29 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jianqing

IRAE
DIRECTOR
EFE

—NFRAZTHRAESZSFSHERRET

T OATIEERREE:

Bao Jun

RE
DIRECTOR
£
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B E) R

. e Ny
AR E

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HE_T-\F=A=+—RHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRANEL
(Accumulated
Statutory Investment losses) Non-
Share Share Other surplus  Designated revaluation  Translation retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve  safety fund reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
B 4 £ EEERMR BEX2  REER ®E  (RiBR) k2R
k& HfE 1] 1 ig 1] 1 REERH gt 343 a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETR AREBTR ARETR AR®TT ARETT AR%TR
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(Mi3ta) (B &Eb) (Kizc)
At 1 April 2016 RZZE-~%
A-B 475,031 4031177 (3,775,606) 27,108 20,328 = 2,619 (7,389) 773,268 105,332 878,600
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = = (84,591) (84,591) (20,656) (105,247)
Other comprehensive FREMEZARA
income for the year = = = = = = 505 = 505 = 505
Total comprehensive income  £RZ2EMA
(expense) for the year (Ax)eg - = = = = = 505 (84,591) (84,086) (20,656) (104,742)
Issue of shares (see note BT (REGA
36 to the consolidated HHBREMT
financial statements) 36) 73983 426,861 — — — — — — 500,850 — 500,850
Transaction costs BOMERRZ
attributable to issue of IHE
new ordinary shares — (6,030) — — — — — — (6,030) — (6,030)
Dividend R & - - - - - - - — - (5,031) (5,031)
Transfer to statutory surplus B & Z A B
reserve 1 = = — 1147 - — - (1,147) — - —
Transfer to designated BRZEARS
safety fund -5 = = = = 7,386 = = (7,386) = = =
At 31 March 2017 WoE—t%
ZA=t-B 549014 4,452,014 (37756060 28,255 27,714 - 3124 (100513) 1,184,002 79,645 1,263,647
Profit for the year FRER - = = = = = = 142,060 142,060 31,378 173438
Other comprehensive FREMEZARA
income (expense) for (%)
the year = = = = = 14,014 (11,014) = 3,000 = 3,000
Total comprehensive income  FRZ2EKA
(expense) for the year (Bx)4E - - - - - 14,014 (11,014) 142,060 145,060 31,378 176,438
Capital contribution XE-AHEAR
from non-controlling FRRERL
interests of a subsidiary HE = = = = = = = = — 5,800 5,800
Transfer to statutory surplus BB ZE AT B
reserve 1 = = = 3712 = = = (3,712) - - -
Transfer to designated BERZERER2
safety fund g - - = - 6,831 - - (6,831) - - -
At 31 March 2018 RZB-N\F
=H=1+-H 549,014 4,452,014  (3,775,606) 31,967 34,545 14,014 (7,890) 31,004 1,329,062 116,823 1,445,885
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Notes:

NF=A=+—RHILFE

Other reserve of the Group as at 1 April 2016 mainly represents (i) the
financial impact of adopting merger accounting for the acquisition of Union
Honor Limited (“UHL") and its subsidiaries; and (ii) a debit arising from the
deemed distribution to shareholder which represents the cash consideration
of the acquisition of UHL of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB55,595,000)
paid to the vendor during the year ended 31 March 2014 (see note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements).

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries
of the Company, they are required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, by
way of appropriations from their respective statutory net profit (based on
their PRC statutory financial statements) but before dividend distributions.
They are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory
reserves. The appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve may cease if the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the registered
capital of the relevant companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be
used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion
into capital by means of a capitalisation issue. However, when converting
the statutory surplus reserve into capital, the remaining balance of such
reserve must not be less than 25% of the registered capital of the relevant
companies.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulation, certain subsidiaries are required
to transfer a certain percentage based on a progressive rate on revenue
generated from manufacturing and transportation of gas or other dangerous
chemical into a designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and
repair and maintenance of safety facilities. The movement during the year
represents the difference between the amounts provided based on the
relevant PRC regulation and the amount utilised during the year.

idated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

of Cash Flows

2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—LF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Operating activities HERT
Profit (loss) before tax B B A A (B 18) 212,415 (91,328)
Adjustments for: M T ERELFAE:
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEK
equipment BT E 60,293 66,978
Amortisation of intangible asset B EE CHH 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TET & 3k o2 # 5E 1,389 1,362
(Gain) loss on fair value change of MAXPTET R
embedded derivatives NEEED 2 (k)
B (14,939) 1,775
Exchange difference E X =% 5,218 4,499
Finance costs A& B A 23,498 42,524
Damages claim from deposit paid for BUE —HEE QA
acquisition of an associate EXfikeEE
BEBERE (19,075) —
Interest income B dA (72,007) (6,243)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BER
equipment R 2 W= (38) (5)
Share of results of associates iR /N = 12,890 9,359
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBEEWZE — (339)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised JE U — el Bk & 2 A1 K
on amount due from an associate HEERREEE
o (6,716) —
Impairment loss on goodwill 2R EEE — 22,670
Operating cash flows before movements in & & & & & B Al 2
working capital RERESME 203,321 51,645
Decrease (increase) in inventories FE R4 (g m) 4,978 (603)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other E 5 & H 4t e UL BR 3R
receivables (3% n) S/ (848,344) 733,041
Decrease (increase) in amount due from a JEUW— & B #E A L+
related party TR A (3 00) 12 (1,398)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due JE B B B FIE 4 A%
from non-controlling equity owners of Bam BB AREBERD
subsidiaries (3% 7n) 11,606 (9,906)
Increase in amount due from an associate J& 1~ — [ B & A &
TXIE I N (603) —
Increase (decrease) in trade payables and ZEZEMNZEREMS
other liabilities & 12 10 Ot 4) 252,380 (727,306)
Increase in amounts due to associates JFE {51 BSt & /0 | 5K I8 12 0 25,556 9,746
Cash (used in) generated from operations #L & (FT#E)FT153H € (351,094) 55,219
Income tax paid BT H (9,146) (12,117)
Income tax refunded REFAEH 17,427 —
Net cash (used in) from operating activities #& & %7 (FT#E) FT1S 2
IR e R (342,813) 43,102
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—T-N\E —tF
NOTE RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt 51 ARETT AR FT
Investing activities BREEE
Interest received B U F B 1,956 2,730
Proceeds from disposal of property, H:'I%'WJ¥ T 5 K2
plant and equipment w2 PTG ?ﬁ’\ 210 20
Receipt of long-term receivables WHX%HWEW — 27,006
Capital injection to an associate [\ — & Hﬁ?%@jfiiéf (20,000) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE¥ % - BEMKEE (25,809) (15,255)
Acquisition of an associate UG B8 — F Bt 2 A A — (34,500)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of a WKiE—FMRB AR 2
subsidiary e mAFE 40 — 3
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RERMEERIRITFR 801,031 807,593
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEFEITFER (910,848) (703,777)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities % & & &) (FT#E)
1S3 & 3 5 (153,460) 83,820
Financing activities AMEEE
Interest paid EAAE (20,208) (37,488)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling equity X3 F —EHBA
owner of a subsidiary —H I Hx*éﬁn
BEAZRE — (5,031)
Repayments of bank and other borrowings E&E Tk HtbEE (470,948) (520,047)
Repayments of obligations under finance (2 gt & H & ¥
leases —_ (268)
Redemption of convertible bond f& [B] 7] #2 I% 18 o5 (66,217) —
Repayment from non-controlling equity —F'ﬁ Bt /B8 1 &) 3F 2 AR A
owner of a subsidiary =B AN ZER — (10,000)
New bank borrowings raised Eﬁﬁ IERITIEE 653,948 352,680
Proceeds from issue of shares XTI D 2 FT 15 5/08 — 500,850
Expenses on issue of shares ?kﬁﬂxfﬁ,z%ﬁi — (6,030)
Capital contribution from non-controlling R 8 — KB 2 5 JE 1=
interests of a subsidiary IR 2 HE 5,800 —
Net cash from financing activities BEEEMEZ
H& R 102,375 274,666
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash IR RIF£ZE{HEBZ
equivalents (iR ) I i% 58 (393,898) 401,588
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENMZHRER
beginning of the year Re%¥HEIEH 463,222 61,129
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREE > 52 (19,251) 505
Cash and cash equivalents NERZBEER
at the end of the year R&%EEER 50,073 463,222
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the "Group”)
is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section in the annual report.

Upon the completion of the mandatory unconditional cash
offer on 3 January 2011, Frontier Global Group Limited
("Frontier Global”) which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Wang
Jianging (“Mr. Wang"), acquired 71.5% of the aggregate
issued share capital of the Company, and Frontier Global
and Champion Golden Limited then became the immediate
holding company and ultimate holding company of the
Company, respectively. Both Frontier Global and Champion
Golden Limited are limited liability companies incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

Upon the completion of the acquisition of a subsidiary and
the issue of new shares on 16 May 2014 as set out in note
2 (the "Acquisition”), the immediate holding company and
ultimate holding company of the Company were changed
to Champion Ever Limited, which a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang.

The Group is principally engaged in the entering into
oil and gas sales and purchase contracts with a number
of counterparties. Starting from 16 May 2014, upon the
completion of the Acquisition, the Group is also engaged
in the production and sale of liquefied natural gas (“LNG"),
sales of vehicle gas at refuelling station, sales of piped
gas, LNG transportation and construction of gas pipeline
infrastructure.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the functional
currency of the Company has changed from Hong Kong
dollars (“"HKD") to Renminbi (“RMB") as the primary economic
environment of the Company changed to a PRC business
environment. Following the change of functional currency
of the Company, the Company changed the presentation
currency of its consolidated financial statements from HKD
to RMB. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that this could simplify the financial reporting process and it
could provide users with more comparable information with
other companies in similar industries.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T ¥ RIZRAR QA
Annual Report 2018 4 i

TEMRERERAB (AR &
REMBAR @ GE[ANEE]) T —H
RBREZMKIL 2 ARBRAAE -
EROREEBERZMERAR L
e ARAZAMPERRTBELEE
B U R FRAAE RN R

Eg o

AT ——F—F =BT GME
BHReENE BERBEE(E
T DB EBRREEGR
REl(TRBRHEDEBTARAEEE
TTIRABEE 271.5% + Hig L2 IRIK
J Champion Golden Limited% 5l 5%
RARNE] 2 PEER DR R &ZER
A A] o %82 IR Kk Champion Golden
Limited 9 AR EBRXHE (KB E
ZHEDEFMA L 2BERAT -

R-ZT—MFEHA+RATKKR BB
DA BT (AN M L 2P 8 - T BB
FEN® ARRZEEERARR
REERAFEBER/RBEEARR AT
FZAR /RN EBREZE B MK
YEHFAEEZERAZERRA -

AEEFERFERZRHFHIILA
HERRREBANZEK - -F
—MERATARARE  WEEATK
% AEENEFEERFEERER
ARTBERAR]D  RIMR U HE
ERR HEBBRAR BRIEXA
REGREZRAREBEMRIE ©

WIEERTKRE ARA 2R
EmAT(ETNERSARETA
R%]) RARARRZ TELBERER
EE2FLSTEBERE #EXALARQ
Az E¥®R  ARRERESS
MBEBRZEZINEERBTERSA
RE - ARREERR  WEAME
MIGERBREF  YAREREREE
ZEBAMDITEEMARILLROER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Acquisition of UHL and the adoption of merger accounting
On 28 October 2013, the Group entered into an agreement
with Ying Hui Limited (“Vendor”) and Vendor's shareholders,
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to acquire
and the Vendor conditionally agreed to dispose of the
sales shares, representing the entire issued share capital of
UHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor, at the total
consideration of HK$2,861,775,000. Both the Vendor and UHL
are limited liability companies incorporated in the BVI.

Mr. Wang, the ultimate shareholder of the Company, has
equity interest of 62.89% of the Vendor and has control
over the Vendor. On 17 March 2014, the Group entered into
a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental SPA”) with the
Vendor and the Vendor's shareholders pursuant to which
the consideration of the Acquisition has been revised to
approximately HK$3,068,246,000.

According to the Supplemental SPA, the total consideration
of the Acquisition is satisfied by (i) cash consideration
of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB55,595,000); and (ii)
HK$2,998,246,000 by procuring the Company to issue and
allot to the Vendor's shareholders of a total 4,283,209,057
shares (“Consideration Shares”) at an issue price of HK$0.70
per Consideration Share. During the year ended 31 March
2014, cash consideration of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB55,595,000) has been paid, which is deemed to be a
distribution to shareholders.

The Acquisition was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a special general meeting held on 8 May 2014
and was completed on 16 May 2014.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Acquisition of UHL and the adoption of merger accounting
(Continued)

Mr. Wang has obtained the control of the Company since
the completion of mandatory unconditional cash offer
on 3 January 2011 as stated in note 1, and on 11 January
2013, Mr. Wang obtained the control of the Vendor and
UHL. As such, the Group and UHL are under common
control of Mr. Wang. The Acquisition of UHL has been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements using the
principle of merger accounting, taking into consideration
of the requirements under Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations”, as if they
had been combined from the date when the combining
entities first came under control of Mr. Wang.

Going concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful considerations
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
as at 31 March 2018, its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately RMB18,914,000. Taking into
account of (i) the available loan facilities of RMB632,240,000,
RMB214,276,000 and RMB120,000,000 with maturity up
to September 2018, November 2018 and February 2019,
and (i) the issue of two-year secured guaranteed notes of
HK$300,000,000 (equivalent to RMB242,772,000) in May 2018
with maturity up to April 2020, respectively, pursuant to the
relevant facilities documents, the directors of the Company
are confident that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future and
be able to operate on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In
addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 46. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 46, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration'
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRs

2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Transfers of Investment
Property!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

J All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

Loan receivables carried at amortised cost as disclosed in
notes 23, and 24: these are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will continue
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost upon the
application of HKFRS 9; and

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale investment
carried at fair value as disclosed in note 26: these securities
qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI under
HKFRS 9, however, the fair value gains or losses accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve, net of related
deferred tax, amounting to RMB14,014,000 as at 1 April 2018
will no longer be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, which is different from the current treatment.
This will affect the amounts recognised in the Group's profit
or loss and other comprehensive income but will not affect
total comprehensive income.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS ("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets
measured at amortised cost and other items that subject
to the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group. Based on the assessment by the directors
of the Company, if the expected credit loss model were
to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount of
impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at 1 April 2018
would be slightly increased as compared to the accumulated
amounts recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to
expected credit losses provision on trade receivables, long-
term receivables, deposit paid for acquisition of an associate,
amounts due from an associate/non-controlling equity owner
of a subsidiary and a related party. Such further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would reduce
the opening retained profits and increase the deferred tax
assets at 1 April 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

J Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognized in the
respective reporting periods.

68 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T MR RIZRER A A

Annual Report 2018 4 i

3.

R E] RAEBTEERF
BRI (BB BEE R
IJ_I)(H\E)
?zﬁgjﬁﬁigﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬂ
.ﬁﬁ
B R e E B B R S R FE 155
HHE-—BHE-—2EEAEEBAE
KEEPEHMES ZWEAR - B
BAMBREEAZSHAERE - A
H#HMJOT—EBTZW SERIES  BEE
ﬁﬁﬁ‘l%wﬁ/{ﬁ?ﬁu - BB GEE
E‘J PSR EZ S RBERE -

& 7% S R F155% 2 20 R R
%%’Tﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬂgﬁﬁgﬁdﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁk
AR5 f il 2 W25 & 8 - R R BE R

ERBHRRRLZSTEmARSG A E
ZEE Zﬁfaoﬂgﬁ’ﬁ R EASIA
T AR S 2 28R

=

e E—X:RBIEEFZELN

. E_H BRGNP HNBOELR

. FE=F BEXRZER

. EMF  BREERIEEEH
PrRAEMRE

. ERH REBTHRBHEEIR
( ?fiﬁt) Eu/uq&/\

RARE 8 B 15 ﬁi | 351557 - E 58

R 5E B B 40 & {E B (S 3t ) B R e

o Eﬂﬁé‘¢iEJ@Z’JETE$EF§Z§D (

Rz [EHE I EETERE - H8

B REEMNEISHRERFTRBER 2

BRI AMAERRIED o - B
ABE R R SRR T AT
HBZBE -

RoT—AF BBEALEEM

0] ﬁ?ﬁ%a& AR F 158 2 B - w
RBERHBHEME TEABHREA
MERREERFRES -

KAREETEH  MNBEEEREBE
HREEBFISH A EERFE 2R
WE AWM ARAPEEEHERS
f%ﬂﬂ%iﬁiﬁﬁu%wﬁﬂﬁf HAERE
25 HA 5 7 7 ZH&Z S HDBF RS N & BB

REATE

EHS&ME@L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A B AR T AT

o=

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing and operating cash flows respectively by the
Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS ("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB3,847,000 as disclosed
in note 43. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB127,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost and such adjustments are considered as
additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance lease
payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique with unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

J the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns

at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components
of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group's and the non-controlling interests’

proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESFBRE)
(Continued)
Business combinations XBE O
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the FBRBDHDRBUBEAR X%
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a EHMBRIREBRAFEFE M
business combination is measured at fair value, which is AEFARIEEERE CEE A5
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of EHWWBARNEAEAELEZER
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the R 72 6 B 10 A2 4 4 K B 8 ) Y 4 o
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity FrEgfTe RERWIEA BN A TEE
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the Mo MWBEREFENK A —RNE
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised ERRIBERERNER -

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and RUEBH - T 23R EE R
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, FiEEsEBERREN R FEER
except that: HE T 51 I8 B BR A -

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities o REREEENRENRERE
related to employee benefit arrangements are BHNZHEHENEERAES
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS RIRIEE B G ERF125: 7777
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits HREBEGAERNEI9RESHE
respectively; FIER Rt E

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based o B2 4% U BB 2~ R B9 IR 1 32 & BE
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based B RS AR R B AT S 9 AR 10 S A
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to 2 HF AR AR U B A B A9 AR 19 S A+
replace share-based payment arrangements of the ZHERNBEIRATA T
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 RIBESHEREBETEUB RS
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the HRE2HRRGZMETE(RTX
accounting policy below); and BEHER) R

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held o RIRE BB 5 M E LR FE55% A
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current 1EL & /Y FF i B & B R B #UF
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are FEIBRRBELENEE (K
measured in accordance with that standard. HEAES)RIBZERGFE -

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the e o RE  RNEWEB AR ZEM

consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling RSB RBBESLNFER

interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s W E AR RRE(INE) 2 AT EE
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over AR BT U B 2 FT B Rl & B K P RCHE

the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and Z BERUEE B8 e 26D R

the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re- REE - WMiELEMRE - AW 2T

assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the BRI E E N pTAE Z 8 E R UREE B E

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds BB E R o RE - N

the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any NEMEAEERERN SERKER

non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value ERFEHBEBARINER (A2
of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if N T EEM - FB A AR 18 25 AR
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss NiERABZBEEIZ -

as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.

ERT B (&)

Business combinations (Continued) EHEO(E)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership RREMEEER BTHEFEER
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate B AR R AR LB S A5 AR R BT B A ROF

share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The

BEMBENMFZRES  FRZ
IE F2 B 25 FE 1A 1R BB 2 R) AT A
FEECHERTENLIIH D FET
E - EEERTBEXSMELE

choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by- 2o
transaction basis.
Merger accounting for business combinations involving REAZEHEBEZSHBNEHE

entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination occurs
as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the
time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

RAEMBERRBEBELXRZS S H
MeaHERBAXBHMBEHRERER
BUEZFAHEBAEFBERZIE
HOEGEREEEAH K -

EHERBIEBFEETIZIESD
MERBERMELTAN -  EEH TR
BHEEEDSNIRET  KRAEHEH
H%jﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%{gﬁﬁmﬂﬁzmﬁﬁWE
o] & %8 o

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other meEmaRkAMEIERKAGZRERE
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the EaHERIEBARFEZIBHE
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date FEZEEHERIEBLERIAR
presented or since the date when the combining entities or THIEHE(CARRREERE)NE
businesses first came under the common control, where this B o

is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

i%é%ﬁ%&%#ﬁﬁ?ﬁttﬁZﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ

MEBIEBR E—EAREHERK
BRBRHARZEHEUREERSE)C
BHCEERT -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-
generating units in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted
in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described
below.

Revenue from sales of goods, which includes wholesale of
LNG, sales of vehicle gas at refuelling stations and sales of
piped gas, is recognised when goods are delivered and titles
have passed.

Revenue from oil and gas contracts is recognised on the net
amount of sales and purchase contracts of goods sold.
Revenue from provision of services, which includes
construction of gas pipeline infrastructure and LNG
transportation, is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Operating costs includes the gross amounts of oil and
gas purchase contracts, cost of sales of goods and cost of
provision of services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_Z—\F=ZA=1+T—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. B BR (48)
(Continued) y .
Property, plant and equipment wx BERRKRE
Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for NEX BMEERREEREFAARNE
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for E it ,D\EﬁiﬂEﬁ%jfTiﬁﬁﬁHﬁZ@
administrative purpose other than construction in progress $ |’%Ei§1&fﬁ%9|\)ﬁ/{ﬁi$mﬁ%f«%
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation AT E R RAREEENK(MA)
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Properties in the course of construction for production, REE . %E%;ﬁiﬁ&%ﬁ%%—tg
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less %iﬁ?EXZ’KWEEMEEE%WEEEE
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional e }ﬂij&@%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ&(?ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised Eﬂﬁ%‘)fﬁﬁ$%@ﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁﬁ
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such RZEEAR - ZEPRTE TR =
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of éﬁ%ﬁﬁ;’%ﬁ%&%ﬁ%%¥ ’ Hﬁ%&
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready %&%Zé\@ﬁ%” - HHEMYMREELZ
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same EE’E—%  REEEEERTARE
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets Flia 4T & -

are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of % ER LB RRIR A TR 8 A F A i
assets other than construction in progress less their residual e '\MW%éE(EEI&K’%MOZEX
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight- Z]S;‘)ﬁkﬁt%%ljﬁﬁ{;‘éﬁ)’ ° 1E§JrEH§EﬁH¢,Hﬂ ;
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values FpEERTEDER S 2WMBER
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each B EARBHEPRERAHEE
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate S -

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised —HEYE Cbg?&f REHEERENE
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are N ERFEFRAZEESTEEL
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any &jﬁ?finﬁ%/@ﬂ BRHOHRER - HE
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item ﬁ/@iﬁ}%%—% ﬁ\}%& REHBEEZ
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the THEBERZEEZHEMSRE

difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying HEHERNZR/AE)RBRE EEEE

2 2 2 o =7
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position

as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are

incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held and operating leases, are recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as

a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEEHBERER)
(Continued)
Taxation #E
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently P15 15t B 52 T 48 3R B JE A5 250 T8 I R RE
payable and deferred tax. MIRZ AR -
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for IR B JRE A5 750 T8 T 4R 6 Q) JRE AR 0 A B
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as HoERVUBNEGaERRHEME
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and EWARKAMEZBMBRBADANIE
other comprehensive income because of income or expense FrERl - sy REEMFEE 2 BR
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items B Al T 2 WA HIBER A R
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current KEBERG I IEE - NEH
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or Z BRI B AR S HRE LA E R
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. FENRRI B ERGE -
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences BLEBIBENIRGEMHEBRERANEER
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the BEZEREESRBNGERRTOREN
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax ZHEREMER G REZ8EM TN
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax R REHEEBE - REMBEER
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary MERZREMTUARER - Wige R
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for A8 2 FE AR R A DA K 85 AT B mT 40
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is MERZERE - BRERIEEE R
probable that taxable profits will be available against which ZERRGYGRFZRM T IARR o
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such B — IR T & B RTOH NI &
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary B EMzRIPERER(TE
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in EREKEHAMEERAEME
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a AERZEZR RIZZFEERABETS
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the WHER ©

accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary BIET IR BE IR M B A A M B &
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and NAIZBREEAEZERGEREZRT
associates, except where the Group is able to control the AR - ERNEEEIEGIEREE
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that 2 BB LA K By = BN A TR R A R
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable AR Z BN TR - AEZFR
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary B R tE s B 2 AT A0 B RS = RE i A
differences associated with such investments and interests EZREHBEEESRAIEERH
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that A ENA 2 FERRB & A A AR RS =
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise A B R EAR AT 78 R R BB 2 15
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are AT HETUNER -

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the BREREEEZEREMENSHREHR
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that TUARE - WK S BRIRER B E
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be Rt ms Al LA Bl 2 EB ek By B E 2 1B
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. SN HETTHOR ©
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EaTBUR(4E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) THET A (E)
Financial assets SREE
The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two ﬂK%Zi%ﬂﬁEEﬁ)\T §|Jl_iﬁ1l Ll
categories, including loans and receivables and available- ZEP—@E BEERKREKRE IEJ«/(
for-sale ("AFS") financial assets. The classification depends NaT g & ([A] uuj%J)%ﬁﬂéfF
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is *E?E?ZE%QEFZEEI&FHEWE
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way WRHEHEREG TAETE - IBLEE
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and BELES Pﬁﬁ%ﬂ? REHBE%E
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases HE R 2 BUH ﬁﬁ EBEXLETD
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require BEAHES Fﬂﬁé% I ERKR T %
delivery of assets within the time frame established by J:}RfEQ'JT\fW %5 2 B EIER AN A
regulation or convention in the marketplace. RNEE -
Effective interest method FERFF %
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the BERMEEDHEGB IR 2 #IHK
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest RARNAEEEBHMS AN EWRAZH
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is EoBEBRNERIZEHEE 2 TBET
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 6 A BAsk (0@ A B2 EARR - 1
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part BB RKRRESRA(BEERE
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other BNEREROZMAENRERE
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the A REEAREMGELITE)EY]
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the AR ZEREFEIHE -

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis MEBIAEMS  MEKRATEZER
for debt instruments. PIEEERER -

AFS financial assets OtHESMEAE

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either AL ESRHEEREERAIHLE
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) s 3 I $8 7% (a) B AR % JE M FRIE S (b)
loans and receivables or (b) held-to-maturity investments ?ﬁﬁ B HA A 5l (c )Tﬁ@ﬁ@ﬂr)\?@
or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss HER(RATFEGFABEERD 2/
(“FVTPL"). éﬁanEmiIﬂ °

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS REEHADBR/AHLESREE
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each ZHX$ AR EMERARIZAFER
reporting period except for unquoted equity investments CBRATEEEASEIGTENERE
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Dividends on HXZF?‘HQZM\ o A HjEHXZKIﬂZ
AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when BRSO = B W R R B, 2 RE R 3R

the Group's right to receive the dividends is established. RERRARER o Al # uﬂ%%%ﬂﬁ?
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial EEETEZ&WE’%@JE/\\EWEIEWAW
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and BRLRIKEBEFEGETRE © i
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation HEWEENETEABE - AEATR
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined REEMFHRAZ RTRESEN
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ”ﬁﬁ(ﬁTXﬁﬁaﬁﬂﬁi
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is WEEEZGTIE) -

reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.

FEEBR(E)

Financial instruments (Continued) BT HE)
Loans and receivables B & ERKRR

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, long-term
receivables, amount due from an associate, amounts due
from non-controlling equity owners of subsidiaries, amounts
due from related parties, pledged bank deposits and bank
balance and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial

assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

B K YRR AT E BB T 45 I 4 e
EEM W EE LA EEMNKZIEITE
TRMEE  -NNTHRR  EXNE
WHRRR (B E 5 K H RN
YR - B — R E QR
R RURMBARFZERESEARA
HIE - ERBEBEALRE  EER
RITERARBITEHR KRR S) DK
PR R M) 3ROR 12 8 55 X AN R (] B
FREEBERIKAETXEECRE
EZREEEZEFHER) -
MEWATIRBERN RER - HHE
RBA B AE K Z 5 B R IE R
Ay o

ETREEZHE

TREENSREHRTD TUNEE
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are BHRBEDR MERBEER
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence ™ A-—EAZERNTERTHE
EREEZEMAMTERMEE AT
AKXKREREEXITE BB
ER /LT RME -

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment

that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

RAREERAKREMNS  FFAF
BEAEXEHRFEEENEKRARE S
MEZEEER -

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

IEEMEREENS RELE
BERBEAeRE:

For all other financial assets objective evidence of
impairment could include:

BOTARRSGHFHIREAM
IR & Bk

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or o
counterparty; or

EBR WARBEENITEEREER
MEBHARE K

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in °
interest and principal payments; or

BERAE ATRE S & BB I EE ok
Bf 5 E 40 5 5k

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter o
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

AR ERNEEREEASRE
EZEBRMBHEK -

o disappearance of an active market for that financial o
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
of 30 to 90 days, and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified either as financial liabilities or as equity according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates, amount due to a non-controlling
equity owner of a subsidiary and bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is
a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the derivative component are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivatives contract are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL. Generally, multiple embedded
derivatives in a single instrument are treated as a single
compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives
relate to different risk exposures and are readily separable
and independent of each other.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESFBRE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) T T A E
Derecognition B H & a2
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the AEEENRBEEERRERZEH
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or BEMENEE  SAREHEREER
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the BEFTAE 2B R DRk & E R
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. ETE—ERERIERREBMEE o
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards MAEBERECEZSMEEMAE
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group Z 48 KB A7 B B e Bl - BI AN &R [ 4
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises BHERAZECMEE TRz
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. FTISRIBRREREE -
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the REHBERREHEER BER
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum EEEE W N ERARE 2 B MR EE
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised LEE SREZRER

in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation WX EEEKETE 2 BEEERER - B
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or HEER - RIBURERREE -2
has expired. The difference between the carrying amount BEERZemABEREEREEN R
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration ERREMER2ZE  eRE=R
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss. BR e

Intangible asset BELE

Intangible asset acquired separately BIUWEBZzEREE

Intangible asset with finite useful lives that is acquired AERFHEREEBINENELE
separately is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation E O ¥R B AN R B 5 3E N A (] 25
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for BEEEIKR - AIERFHAERZEN
intangible asset with finite useful life is recognised on a BEBHDNHEGAAIERFHNE
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. The estimated ROEHER o hEtRIE A F R EES
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end ERERERRETER - MAEMRIMGE
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in AN EARAMEEEARR
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the EXEBRERRERNEERBEEBEZ
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible BETEK)

and intangible assets above).

Intangible asset acquired in a business combination REBEHWBBZERLEE
Intangible asset acquired in a business combination REBEHMBzBLEEDRE
is recognised separately from goodwill and is initially BUIINSITHER - TRWEBRAT
recognised at its fair value at the acquisition date (which is BENTHERERBEKE) -
regarded as its cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible asset acquired RTHERRE  REBEHAMWER
in a business combination with finite useful life is reported EERAERAFHZEFLEELRKA
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated WEBFHRBERTMNARAFHEEBEEZ
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets HEREBSIWEELEENER
that is acquired separately (see the accounting policy in ERRTXNEBERVREREER
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible BEEBZEHERE) -

assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible asset

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset

is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

4.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESFBRE)
(Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other BEERBREEE(TEEHE (R L
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of XEHEEZEBE))ZHEERE
goodwill above) (Continued) (#&)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating WEEGBReELESN) 2T KE S
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the BAEGTHIREREE - A& E (1R
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) TEAEBM)ZRAEG R EHA
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the RIS - RO R EEER - /A
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to EEELESEENREMNEEZET
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) BERREERBEELREEZ
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on FHERLAISEEEMEE - BE
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying ZEEEARHBRZERRNE R FER
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its HEXAR(AIEE) - EAEME A
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in BEIMZEZ2Hhz2ESE - HEMARX
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment NEEEEZREBEBSBEILLAS
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset RMEEUVHMEE - BREBRESNE
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An RIERRTER o

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the R EBEEEEE - RIEINEE (3
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is BeELBEM) 2 RAEE EATKE
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, HE BB LTS8 HIBMmE 2
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed BREE TR BBE MR BEFE YL BT
the carrying amount that would have been determined had RZEE(HBSEEEN) 2 BERS
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash- EmMERE2EEE - HESBE IR
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment Bl g Bl R 18 25 AR A FE R o

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions 1

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present MASEERBESHMAALZENR
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable EF-MAEERAKSEAEEZE
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation £ Hetr St ZEE2 28R
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the AHRRBE BEBENKERAL
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the It e i RN E R &% - RiB
best estimate of the consideration required to settle the HRERRREEZEMETMARE
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking RENZEGFTMER o WEEHTE
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the REEZENEANGEFR R ER
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash E - HEEBEAZSReRENRE
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying (HESNRREREBETZEZEKN) -

amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

Inventories FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEDERKAERAIZEHRFEIRE
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted BEAR - BE 2R IE T ERE
average method. Net realisable value represents the Eeo BT EEREZMAEER
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs EFBEMFEIRKARKNEERS
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Z AR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_Z—\F=ZA=1+T—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contributions retirement benefit
plans, state-managed retirement schemes and the Mandatory
Period Fund Scheme are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors, employees
and consultants providing similar services are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in the share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

4.
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5.

94  Yuan

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the management of the Group
has made various estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on past experience, expectation and
other information that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 March 2018 amounted
to RMB34,070,000 (2017: RMB34,070,000), respectively. The
Group is required to carry out an impairment assessment of
goodwill at the end of the reporting period by comparing
their recoverable amount with carrying amount. In
determining the recoverable amount, the Group and the
independent external valuer assesses the value in use of the
asset or cash generating unit to which the goodwill has been
allocated by discounting their estimated future cash flows
to the present value. Significant judgment and assumptions
were required in the process such as the use of discount
rates, growth rates, estimated average purchase price of
natural gas and average selling price of LNG during the
forecast period. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Heng Gas Holdings Limited TT= MRRIEKRER A F

Annual Report 2018 4 i
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_Z—\F=ZA=1+T—HLLFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5.
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Measurement of the fair value of the unlisted investments
held by an acquired subsidiary and the recoverable amount
of deposit paid for acquisition of an associate

The Group held an available-for-sale investment which
is unlisted and not publicly traded and the recoverable
amount of deposit paid for acquisition of an associate with
a carrying amount of RMB220,886,000 and RMB190,748,000
(2017: RMB202,200,000 and RMB190,748,000), respectively,
at 31 March 2018. The management is required to measure
the fair value of the investment and the recoverable amount
of deposit paid for acquisition of an associate held by the
subsidiary. The management engaged an independent
external valuer in determining the fair value of the
investments and the recoverable amount of deposit paid for
acquisition of an associate. Judgement and estimations are
required in choosing the appropriate valuation methodology,
adopting the assumptions and use of market comparable
investments and discount rate on marketability.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment at
31 March 2018 and 2017 amounted to RMB753,846,000 and
RMB788,127,000, respectively. Property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and
if the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact the
depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates
change.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Impairment loss is applied to trade receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible or when the net present value of the
receivable is less than the carrying amount of the receivable.
The identification of impairment loss requires the use
of management's estimations. These estimations include
evaluating expected future receipts from customers based
on past payment trend, age of the debts, and knowledge
of the customers' businesses and financial condition. Where
the expectation on the recoverability of trade receivables
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade receivables and the
impairment in the reporting periods in which such estimate
has been changed. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had
trade receivables with carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,084,114,000 (2017: RMB405,645,000).
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BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE
6. TURNOVER 6. EXH
2018 2017
s AY: 2 —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARKET T
The Group's turnover includes: REEBZEXERRE:
Gross proceeds from oil and gas sales contracts AH R AKATHEA L
(note) 2B RIB A%
(Bt &E) 6,333,651 6,182,859
Revenue from sales of goods: HEE MW E
— Wholesale of LNG —%tt%g%/wt%%% 1,596,081 1,610,135
— Sales of vehicle gas at refuelling stations ~ —RINRIEHEBERR 15,497 8,447
— Sales of piped gas —HEBEBERAR 185,989 163,154
Revenue from provision of services: RERE W
— LNG transportation —ﬁ{t%%ﬁkﬁﬁ 14,519 5,979
— Construction of gas pipeline infrastructure —BEARAAREE
ER R 4114 2,269
8,149,851 7,972,843
Note: The net income from oil and gas contracts for the year is Me: FRAARMRRAREGHOZKRAFERA
RMB14,814,000 (2017: net income RMB22,032,000) which is derived R#14,814,0007T (ZZ—+ 5 : WA FHE
from the gross proceeds from oil and gas sales contracts of AR #22,032,0007T) - BNAM &K RAR
RMB6,333,651,000 (2017: RMB6,182,859,000) minus the gross amounts AW BB B A R E6,333,651,000
of oil and gas purchase contracts of RMB,318,837,000 (2017: T(ZF — £ F: A R #6,182,859,000
RMB6,160,827,000). TRARERARBEANEBEAR
#6,318,837,000L (Z T —+tF: ARK
6,160,827,0007T)
7. OPERATING COSTS 7. EENAX
2018 2017
—E-N\f —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
The Group's operating costs include: REEZ KEERANBILE
Gross amounts of oil and gas purchase BHRERARBESH
contracts ] 6,318,837 6,160,827
Cost of sales of goods HEEmZ KA 1,554,212 1,742,856
Cost of provision of services RERBE 2 KA 15,594 7,347
7,888,643 7,911,030

96 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTF &K AR A A
Annual Report 2018 & i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A B AR T AT

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_Z—\F=ZA=1+T—HLLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into business units based on
the types of customers and methods used to distribute
their products and provide their services, based on which
information is prepared and reported to the chief operating
decision maker ("CODM"), the executive directors of the
Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance. Segment profit/loss represents
the profit earned by/loss from each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, share of results of
associates, interest income, finance costs, gain on bargain
purchase. This is the measure reported to the CODM. The
accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies. The Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating

Segments are as follows:

Production and sales Wholesale of LNG
of LNG

Oil and gas

transactions purchase contracts

Other operations

stations, sales of piped gas, LNG
transportation and construction

of gas pipeline infrastructure

Entering into oil and gas sales and

Sales of vehicle gas at refuelling
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EHEBRUEREYIABARAATE
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HE_T-\F=A=+—RHILFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8. SE&AE (&)

Segment turnover and results DEERBEREE
Production
and sales of Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
EERHE Al R
BIELRAR KXARXS H i ¥ 55 @t
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREBTRT AR®BTR ARETR ARETxn
Year ended 31 March 2018 HE-_ZT-N\F=A=
+—BIEFEE
Segment turnover from external REINPEFE Z 5 56
customers B 1,596,081 6,333,651 220,119 8,149,851
Intra-segment turnover S EBE R R 585,323 = — 585,323
Segment turnover DEEXEER 2,181,404 6,333,651 220,119 8,735,174
Elimination EI (585,323)
Total turnover meEe 8,149,851
Segment results DEEE 120,522 30,742 11,795 163,059
Interest income F B2 A 72,007
Damages claim from deposit FHUE—EEE AR
paid for acquisition of an EXiEEEEZ
associate BEEBERR 19,075
Reversal of impairment loss JE Ui — ] Bk & 1 )R
recognised on amount due RERRIRE
from an associate &5 18 # [ 6,716
Gain on fair value change of RARTTETARYF
embedded derivatives BEFH s WE 14,939
Share of results of associates ~ FE{hE & N E) 2 2 4E& (12,890)
Finance costs &l & AR (23,498)
Unallocated corporate ROBEEMZ
expenses (26,993)
Profit before tax R 35 B s A 212,415
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AR A B AR T AT

BE-_2—N\F=ZA=+—HIFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ﬁa‘% &H (&)
Segment turnover and results (Continued) DESEEEREE(E)
Production
and sales of  Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
SERBEE ap:: DN
BAE R AR RAARR S H b % FEy
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR T T AR T T AR T T AR T T
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-_ZT—+F=H
=+ —BHILFE
Segment turnover from external REINPERFEZ 5 56
customers BER 1,610,135 6,182,859 179,849 7,972,843
Intra-segment turnover D el L ¥R 85,416 = = 85,416
Segment turnover DEBEHETE 1,695,551 6,182,859 179,849 8,058,259
Elimination E2i| (85,416)
Total turnover PG 7,972,843
I
Segment results P (54,793) 3,208 9,768 (41,817)
Interest income F B U A 6,243
Share of results of associates FEIREE & NR 2 EE (9,359)
Finance costs R’ & KA (42,524)
Gain on bargain purchase EEBEKE 339
Unallocated corporate ROMEERZ
expenses (4,210)
Loss before tax & FX Al B 18 (91,328)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Segment assets and liabilities
Information of the operating segments of the Group reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment does not include any assets and

liabilities.
information are presented.

Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SEMAF(HK)
Other segment information Hfth 7 SBE #
Other segment information included in the measurement of AEOREERDHEEME 2 HA
segment results and segment assets are as follow: DEE RO :

Production

and sales of Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
EERBHE Vg P
RIEXAR XAREXS Hfth 55 @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBTRE ARETZI ARET:X

Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-F-—-N\£=A

=+—HLEEE
Additions to non-current assets RNEIEREE E 4,771 ) 21,413 26,184
Depreciation of property, plant #% - liE k&R HEH 2
and equipment me 48,033 795 11,465 60,293
Amortisation of intangible asset &2 & & 2~ & = = 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8 & 5k 2 # 85
payments 1,253 136 —_ 1,389
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BERR
plant and equipment 2 W= (37) (1) — (38)

Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-T—t%=HA

=+—HLEFEE
Additions to non-current assets 7 & 3F i 8 & & 1,527 100 16,407 18,034
Depreciation of property, plant %1% - lE k&R H 2
and equipment e 55,560 770 10,648 66,978
Amortisation of intangible asset &2 & & 2 # = = 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease TS & 5k 2 # 54
payments 1121 126 115 1,362
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  MEKRRK
plant and equipment 12 Wz (5) — — (5)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
segment turnover by geographical location of customers
irrespective of the origin of the goods delivered or
services rendered and the Group’s non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets:

8.

S ERE H (48)
2 & H

TREHRAEBEIRE P i & i P
B 78 an P R £ AR A 2 SRR 1 &)
ZOBEXRBERAREREEME

EIDZHERBDEE

Z i

Turnover
= ES ]
Production and Oil and
sales of LNG gas transactions Other operations Total
SERHERILRAR BHREXARXS H ity % 75 @t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-0\E T +tF ZB-N\E ZT—+F ZB-N\E —FT—+tF ZF-N\F —FT—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR%TT ARBTRE ARTT ARBTE AR%TT ARBTE AR%T
The PRC, other than (B SRR AN
Hong Kong 1,596,081 1,610,135 2,723,697 1,127,766 220,119 179,849 4,539,897 2,917,750
Singapore N3 - — 3,609,954 5,055,093 — — 3,609,954 5,055,093
1,596,081 1,610,135 6,333,651 6,182,859 220,119 179,849 8,149,851 7,972,843
Non-current assets*
ERBEE
2018 2017
—B-N\%E —+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
The PRC, other than Hong Kong R E(F BRI 1,168,828 1,194,855
Hong Kong BB 13 127
1,168,841 1,194,982

Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

Information about major customers

Production and sales of LNG and Other operations
Turnover arose from customers represents more than 10%
of the total segment turnover from production and sales of

* ERBDEETEREEMIARELERESE

E o

FTEEFEH
SERHFHERILX
HEENMEERILL

RARUREMER
RIRR e B A R 7%

FEL 2 @D EBEEBEI0%RALEZE

LNG and other operations are as follows: PEEENT:
2018 2017
—T-0\E —+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARETT
Customer A (Note) EPEA (K &) 489,896 493,009
Note: Turnover from production and sales of LNG segment. MiaE: FERBERERARSBELEZERE

2 o
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HE—_ZT—N\F=ZA=+—AHLEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SEB&AE (&)
Information about major customers (Continued) FEEFEF ()
Oil and gas transactions BEHRXARRXS

Turnover arose from customers represents more than 10% of
the total segment turnover from oil and gas transactions are

HOHRRARRIMEEZBDE
BERIOBNEZEPERBEWMT

as follows:
2018 2017
—FE-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Customer B =ZFEB 1,442,146 2,252,999
Customer C EFC 1,981,636 2,056,827
Customer D BFED 1,000,792 800,959
Customer E BFE 850,710 632,906
5,275,284 5,743,691
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hilr A

2018 2017
—E—-N\E —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARSFT ARET T

Interest income from RENUATERZFEWA
— banks — R1T 1,956 2,730
— long-term receivables — REAEW TR 3,734 3,513

— deposit paid for acquisition of — B - AR
an associate (note 24) Y2 e (W iE24) 66,317 —
72,007 6,243

Damages claim from deposit paid for BUE—FHBEAFE

acquisition of an associate (note 24) XNREEEZES
5 18 R == (P 51 24) 19,075 —
Government grant (note) BT 48 B (Bt 5) — 5,000
Others E A 558 856
91,640 12,099

Note: The Group entitled to a government grant of RMB5,000,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2017 as an incentive for locating the principal
office of a Group's subsidiary with a certain amount of paid-up capital
in Guangzhou City.
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HEZ

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

11.

T-N\EFE=ZA=+—-HILFE

10. Hih s & 518

2018 2017
—E-N\f —ET—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERZE
equipment & 38 5
Net foreign exchange loss SMNEE 5 18 0% FE (23,571) (5,596)
Gain (loss) on fair value change of embedded #MARITETERAFE
derivatives (note 38) 28 2 W (B8 )
7£38) 14,939 (1,775)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on JiE Ws — el Bk 8 X ) 3R IR
amount due from an associate (note) EHRREEERD
(P &) 6,716 —
Gain on bargain purchase arising from W g — B A ﬁ?i
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40) Z2EEBRBE WS
(FfF 5£40) — 339
(1,878) (7,027)

Note : During the year, the Group submitted an application to the People's

Court of Wushengji, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (A5 & B8
& SE A RIAR) (the "Court") for a recovery of a bad debt arising
from sales of goods to an associate in prior year. In June 2017, the
Group received a civil ruling from the Court (the "Ruling") that the

Group can recover the bad debt in kind by receiving property, plant
and equipment of RMB3,787,000 and a prepaid lease payment of
RMB2,929,000. The Ruling has been executed during the year, and
a reversal of impairment loss recognised on amount due from an
associate of RMB6,716,000 is recognised in profit or loss.

FINANCE COSTS

M : AEE - AEEGKREEE-FER—MH

MEARHEEREENBERARNTHE
B SEEARER (VAT ) IR R -
RET—+FRA AEEBEELIRNE
EHEEE(HEE]D  BEAEETREA
W % - BB &R A R #3,787,000
JC R FBA & A R %2,929,0007T A E
MR WEER - FR - HEECEH
T - BEK—MBE QAR REEERR
EE B AR A R%6,716,0007T 1 18 25 BR
AR o

11. BMERAE

2018 2017
—E—-N\FE —E—LF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARET T
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEEZHNE 17,937 33,369
Interest on convertible bond A]mRESZHE 5,699 9,538
Finance leases MEMRE — 59
Total interest charges FME X4z 23,636 42,966
Less: Amount capitalised in construction in W EREIREEERNE
progress (note) & B (M 7E) (138) (442)
23,498 42,524
Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.23% per M: BE—E— ) \E=-A=+—AIEE

annum for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: 6.6%).

EERAEBREE5.23% (Z2—+F:
6.6%) Z L REARAL ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FiEHEX

2018 2017
—¥-N\E e
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR®ET T

The charge comprises: T HBE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH
— Current year — KXFEE 495 1,164
PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT") FEMEREDT (R
Frig i)
— Current year — REE 34,472 3,973
— Under provision in prior years — BEFEREBEITR = 1
34,472 3,974
Deferred taxation (note 25) iR FE 753 38 (Bt 5225)
— Current year — KFE 4,010 8,781
38,977 13,919

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

PRC EIT has been provided at the applicable income tax rate
of 25% on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group except for SESRZ T E £82RER AR (“Xingxing
Energy”), #E /N EZEIRAR QA ("Huixin Energy”) and
EMEZRIRIREBR AR ("Huaheng Energy”) which are
taxed at concessionary rate in certain years.

As set out below, the applicable PRC EIT concessionary rate
for Xingxing Energy, Huixin Energy and Huaheng Energy
is 15%, which are under the preferential tax treatment that
given to companies established in the western regions in
the PRC and derived at least 70% of their total income from
their main business in oil and gas industry which falling
within the list of encouraged industries specified by the PRC
government.

Xingxing Energy was registered with the local tax authority
to be eligible to the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate
from 2013 to 2020. Accordingly, Xingxing Energy is eligible
for the EIT of 15% (2017: 15%).
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HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

12.

Huixin Energy was registered with the local tax authority to
be eligible to the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate
from 2012 to 2020. Accordingly, Huixin Energy is eligible for

the EIT of 15% (2017 15%).

Huaheng Energy was entitled to a 15% preferential rate since
its establishment on 24 June 2011 with no definite period
and subject to annual review and approval of local tax

authority.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before tax per consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FRiEBiFZ(48)
EEEREREMHEBIZL - A
TECHFRET_EFAERH
BB EEMEBHRAE - HIt
FEZERAIIZ15% (ZE—+ 4 : 15%)
M EHMNEERMER -

EFTRRE_T——FAA-_1+HA
Rz BRRAIZEX15%2EEHE - B
ERY  HEABBEMHBIMZE
EES R -

REFSABREIEMEEKRARE -
F R Z 1S B 5 S AT B RR B AT A A (&5
B)YRKRIT:

2018 2017
—F-N\E —ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Profit (loss) before tax B # A& A (B 8) 212,415 (91,328)
PRC EIT at 25% 12 25% B B R B B b
ETIEC R 53,104 (22,832)
Tax effect of results of associates BERNBERIMBR
& 3,223 2,340
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax T AT A X 2 75 &
purpose Z 3,431 11,266
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BEERBTMA 2B
purpose Z (1,366) (2,131)
Underprovision of PRC EIT in prior years BEFEHRB M XSG
HEHETE — 1
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible REER 2B E 18 RA]
temporary differences not recognised MRERZR BB
g 1,569 32,371
Effect of concessionary tax rates granted to B THRRENE AR &R
certain PRC subsidiaries at 15% BEBRERZZE(R
15%) (3,939) (6,496)
Utilisation of tax losses or deductible temporary i A 4t Al 7 1 58 2 # 7%
difference previously not recognised BRI R =
%E (16,234) —
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBDERRKE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARZ ARHEL
TE (811) (600)
Income tax expense for the year REEEHAS 38,977 13,919
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13. PROFIT(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. FRBEM(EE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR T T
Profit(loss) for the year has been arrived at after F R 5 (E1E)E
charging: Bk
Auditors’ remuneration % SR i B 1,900 1,800
Amortisation of intangible asset (included in /& E 2 #i5 (GTATT
administrative expense) BHEX) 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A ER 2 #E 1,389 1,362
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense MR AR 2177 E KA 1,554,212 1,742,856
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %% - RE K& EZ
e 60,293 66,978
Directors’ emoluments (see note 14) ZE=Me (RKE14) 4,139 4,160
Operating lease payment in respect of office BRI AME 2 &=/
premises B 1,397 3,047
Salaries and other benefits T&KEMEF 48,379 43,920
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes B K 1E F| 51 2|t % 7,280 5,083
Total staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRAERTEEE
emoluments) = &) 55,659 49,003
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HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO,
is as follows:

MBS

FRAEZERITHRAH 2FMREER
ERRAN R ARG EELT

14. EERT

Year ended 31 March 2018 BE—E—)\F=/A=1+—HILFE

Mr. Wang Mr. Zhou
Jianqing Mr. Bao Jun Jian Total
ITEERE RELE AfRxt4E @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tn AR%®TR AR%ETX
(note a)
(Pt ata)
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) BITES
Fees we 678 470 104 1,252
Other emoluments H 4 Bl &
Basic salaries and allowance EXFHek
2 RG 714 506 938 2,158
Contributions to retirement RIKAEF ET 2
benefits schemes R 69 53 84 206
Total emoluments MedE 1,461 1,029 1,126 3,616

The executive directors’

emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXATRHATEECHE T EREE
BARRRASEEHEMEZ REM
S e

Dr. Leung Mr. Wong
Hoi Ming Chi Keung Mr. Tom Xie Total
REBHABELT FZHEELE HEBSXE st
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFTR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
B) INDEPENDENT NON- B) BIAFHTEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees ok 157 209 157 523
Other emoluments H i B &
Basic salaries and allowance EXFHE R
peacl - — — —
Contributions to retirement RARAE R ET 8
benefits schemes % — — — —
Total emoluments MewsE 157 209 157 523

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

EXARERATESZHE T EFEA
BEARREFREHZRBM A
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BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 14. EERITHEZZME(E)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2017 B —_E—ttF=H=+—HILFE
Mr. Wang Mr. Zhou
Jianging  Mr. Bao Jun Jian Total
TEBELE RELE [l & % & Mt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

(note a)
(Bt &xa)
A)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A BITES
Fees we 650 450 100 1,200
Other emoluments Hin i &
Basic salaries and allowance EXFHek
=i 757 550 960 2,267
Contributions to retirement BIRTE E‘J &
benefits schemes EIIAEN 65 50 78 193
Total emoluments B e @ 1,472 1,050 1,138 3,660
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were EXFTATESC HEZTERHESE
mainly for their services in connection with the management BARRNGBRAEBEEHRE M2 RE M
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. AT e
Note a: Mr. Wang Jianging is also the chief executive of the Company and Mida: EIRBAENRRBARADZTHRAER -
his emoluments disclosed above include those of services rendered EXHBEEM S BREFECITRER
by him as the chief executive. iRt Rz M2 -
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. EFRTHERZMNE (B

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2017

By

P oE—tFE=ZF=1—HIFE

Dr. Leung Mr. Wong

Hoi Ming ~ Chi Keung Mr. Tom Xie Total
REABL BZREE HEEXL st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETET

B) INDEPENDENT NON- B) BIUINTEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees fikea 150 200 150 500
Other emoluments Hth i &
Basic salaries and allowance EXFHe R
28 —~ — — —
Contributions to retirement ELY N E‘J &t
benefits schemes EIIAE — — — _
Total emoluments B & % 8 150 200 150 500
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were EXFRERTEST M EEHHE
mainly for their services as directors of the Company. BEARAESRE R M -
During both years, no emolument were paid by the Group RREFE AEEL\EAAQNFE
to the directors of the Company as compensation for loss of EXNEMMNESEABEREES A
office or an inducement to join in upon joining the Group. AREESMAREE R R o
There were no arrangement under which a director or the RREFE  BEEEHITRAETN
chief executive waive or agreed to waive any emolument BEYRAEBERNETHETN LB -

during both years.
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BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

15.

16.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 15. EEWM £
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments working FBRAEBE 2 AEEaTFMALTZ
for the Group, three (2017: three) were the directors and P HEP=Z (T —tF :=H)AL
the chief executive of the Company whose emoluments are REARAEZRITHAER  MEEZ
included in the disclosures in note 14 above. MEBEI A EXHFUZIEEER -
The emoluments of remaining two (2017: two) highest HEBRMEB(CE—+tF WA &Ko
paid individuals fall within the band of not more than B A £ 2 Bl & > F T ##81,000,0007%
HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB848,910) and details were as TT(HEERAKRKS48910T) 2 5 E -
follows: HBWOT:
2018 2017
—FE-N\EF —E—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARET T
Basic salaries and allowance HEARE & RER 1,228 1,200
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes i K43 7| 51 2 £t 3 84 128
1,312 1,328

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed by the
Company during both years, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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17. EARNING (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (2017: loss)
per share for the year is based on the following data:

Earning (loss) figures are calculated as follows:

17. BEREHN(EE)
AEETREAREERA (T
& BR)DERA TR

aM(EE) BEAENT:

2018 2017
—FT-N\E Tt fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBFT
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic and ARAESRERRE
diluted earnings per share SBAMNMAET (EE) 142,060 (84,591)
Number of shares R 1725
2018 2017
—¥-N\F —E—+F
'000 ‘000
T i T i
Weighted average number of AR EERELRRT
ordinary shares for the purpose of (E 88T AR N
basic earnings (loss) per share 15 8 6,518,339 5,718,945
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: TEREBETEHETE
— issue of consideration shares — BIORERSD 27,291 —
Weighted average number of ARAESREERA
ordinary shares for the purpose of (E18) & & m Az on
dilutive earnings (loss) per share EFH 6,545,630 5,718,945

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2018 did not assume the conversion of the
Company's outstanding convertible bond since their exercise
would not result in a decrease in earnings per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 March 2017 did not assume the conversion of
the Company's outstanding convertible bond and issue of

HEBE-T-AF=A=+-AL
T2 IR BRI R L
ARRRBENTRBRES - BRI
EREEHTREFIFD -

HEBE-T-—LF=A=T+ AL
2 I B L R LR
ARRRBEI TRBESRETR

consideration shares since their exercise would not result in B BETETISEHEFREIE

an increase in loss per share.

B e
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - BEREE
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixture and Construction
machinery Buildings Pipeline vehicles equipment  in progress Total
Rl KB
BERMESE kS EiE B R EEIR @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR®TT AR®TRT ARBTT ARETZ

COST EZ $
At 1 April 2016 R=F—~FNA—A 874,979 163,493 78,631 61,490 5,715 26,325 1,210,633
Additions NE 364 236 = 371 170 16,893 18,034
Transfer B = 1,188 34,729 = 17 (35,934) =
Disposals HE — — = (736) (98) = (834)
At 31 March 2017 RZT—tF=A

== 875,343 164,917 113,360 61,125 5,804 7,284 1,227,833
Additions NE 175 3,958 14,481 1,238 173 6,159 26,184
Transfer 84 110 = = = = (110) —
Disposals HE = = = (999) (271) — (1,270)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\E=R

== 875,628 168,875 127,841 61,364 5,706 13,333 1,252,747
ACCUMULATED AEHFE

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2016 i Uy e =| 269,924 43,182 8,334 47,893 4,214 = 373,547
Provided for the year FEEE 47,757 7,690 4911 6,150 470 — 66,978
Eliminated on disposals 7 i & K5 ¥ 84 = = = (724) (95) — 819)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A

=+—H 317,681 50,872 13,245 53,319 4,589 = 439,706
Provided for the year FERE 42,523 7,893 6,551 2,821 505 = 60,293
Eliminated on disposals 1t & 5 ¥ 84 = = = (830) (268) = (1,098)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\E=A

E=[F 360,204 58,765 19,796 55,310 4,826 = 498,901

CARRYING AMOUNT REE

At 31 March 2018 RZZE—NE=A

E=[F 515,424 110,110 108,045 6,054 880 13,333 753,846
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=A

=+—AH 557,662 114,045 100,115 7,806 1,215 7,284 788,127
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18.

19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis, taking into account residual value, over their
estimated useful lives:

Plant and machinery 10-20 years
Buildings 20 years
Pipeline 20 years
Motor vehicles 4-8 years
Furniture, fixture and equipment 3-5 years

The buildings are situated in the PRC.

Buildings with carrying value of RMB14,625,000 and
RMB57,156,000 as at 31 March 2018 and 2017, respectively,
located in the PRC are in the process of obtaining the
building certificates.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent land use rights in the PRC
obtained by the Group under medium-term lease and are
analysed for reporting purposes as:

18.

19.

ME - BERREE)

tamx  BEEREBEBE (EE2IRE
BRIN TR F R R BERERMGT
ERAFHRNABERELERE:

B 55 Ko 2% 10ZE 204
BF 204F
=B E] 204F
B A8
R B REE 3E54E

ZEBTHLRPE -

R-B-N\ER_F—+tHF=A=+—
A RPEZEFEREES B AA
R #14,625,0007T & A R #57,156,000
T RERETFHNEEFLEREE
o

EREER
ERNAEREASERETHELOE
SRRz L FERE  BFEMS
DATET :

2018 2017

—F-N\EFE —E—+tF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

Current assets mEEE 1,479 1,362
Non-current assets IERBEE 38,732 37,309
40,211 38,671

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group is in the process
of applying for the land use rights certificate for a piece
of land located in the PRC amounting to approximately
RMB3,309,000 and RMB3,385,000, respectively. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group is not required
to incur significant additional cost in obtaining the land use
rights certificates for such piece of land.

R-B-N\FR-_B—tF=A=1+—
B ASBEIERA R B — 8L
Rt MEE  EEEINOR
A K #3,309,0007T & A K #3,385,000
T -ARBEERR AKETEH
BGZ\E Ly Tt EREIERE
KRB »
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20. GOODWILL 20. HE
Amount
ok ]
RMB’000
ARET T
COST A&
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 R-ZE—ARFEOA—H —ZE—+
F=A=+—"HEZ-ZE—N\&F=
B=+—H 56,740
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 April 2016 N\_E—-RFWA—H —
Impairment loss recognised in the year FABEHRBEBRE 22,670
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 RZZE—tF=ZA=+—HEKZ=Z
—NE=A=+—H 22,670
CARRYING AMOUNT AR B
At 31 March 2018 R-E—N\F=ZA=+—H 34,070
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=ZA=+—H 34,070

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to UHL and its subsidiaries which represent the
production and sales of LNG segment, together as one
group of cash generating units (“CGUs"), which represents
the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and is not
larger than the operating segment of production and sales
of LNG, that are expected to benefit from the business
combination.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling price
and direct costs of LNG during the projection period. The
directors of the Company estimate discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the group of CGUs.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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20. GOODWILL (Continued)

21.

The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and a discount rate of 13.66% (2017: 13.35%) for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The cash flows projections beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth
rates. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management's expectations for the market
development. The directors of the Company believe that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
assets of the group of the CGUs to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the assets of the group of the CGUs.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of RMB22,670,000 in respect of goodwill
in view of the continuing fall in LNG prices and stiff market
competition. No impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2018.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

The intangible asset of the Group represents a subsidiary’s
exclusive operating right of sales of piped gas to white
wine distillery factories located in Renhuai City of Guizhou
Provinces in the PRC under a supplementary agreement
entered into among the subsidiary, another subsidiary of
the Company and EMMR(EE)BEREE 2 E (Guizhou
Gas (Group) Co., Ltd) (“Guizhou Gas"”). Guizhou Gas,
which obtained an exclusive operating licences from local
government for the operation of sales of piped gas in
designated areas in Renhuai City of Guizhou Provinces in the
PRC ("Designated Area”) over a period from the year 2007
to 2037, granted exclusive right to a subsidiary of the Group
to operate in the Designated Area. The intangible asset has
finite useful life, and is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the remaining operating period of 19 (2017: 20) years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued) 21. B S E(4E)
Operating
right
A
RMB’000
ARET T
COST BA
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 RZE-—RFEA—H —ZT—+
F=Z=A=+—BR-E—NF=
A=+—H 9,837
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION g
At 1 April 2016 RZE—-—XRFEMA—HA 1,278
Provided for the year FEREE 393
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H 1,671
Provided for the year FEEE 393
At 31 March 2018 R-E—N\F=ZA=+—H 2,064
CARRYING AMOUNT FREE
At 31 March 2018 R-E—N\EFE=ZA=+—H 7,773
At 31 March 2017 R-_ZE—+HF=A=+—H 8,166
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REEATIZHELR
2018 2017
—E-)\EF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Cost of unlisted investment in associates REtE Nal 23k L™
&R 161,235 141,235
Share of post-acquisition results FEAh W B 12 5K 48 (17,563) (4,673)
143,672 136,562
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Detail of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting

22. REE AT 2w (])
RERERRAEEEE AT

periods are as follows:

Name of associate

Place and date

of incorporation/

establishment

Paid-in capital/
registered capital

T

Effective equity

interest attributable

to the Group Principal activities

MR =5 3% 94
BEATERE RLILH BE % B A HEMER FREEGESRRE EBEH
2018 2017
—E-N\NE-T—LF
EMNRR(EE)RARIBREEBR PRC RMB450,000,000 20.0% 20.0% Investment in
A A] (“Guiran Pipeline Company”) 25 July 2013 A & #450,000,0007T LNG pipeline
BEMNRR (KB RARIREE H B infrastructure and
ERAR(EMREERAD —T—=%+A sales of piped gas
—+HH REBRERARE B LR
RiERHEEERA
=
BREHHAREIRYRARRAF] PRC RMB10,000,000 20.0% 20.0% Provision of logistic
("Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic") 8 January 2007 A K %10,000,0007T service
BREHHNAREIRY R ARRF] il e g% AR %5
Th=ZIEWR]) —EZE+FE—R
J\H
EMRR(EE)EKGESBMARER PRC RMB40,000,000 49.7% 49.7% Sales of piped gas
AT (“Xishui Jingiao Company”) 12 July 2012 A R #40,000,0007% HEEBEBRAR
BEMRR(EE)BRKEESBRR Gl
BRAFB(BRKEEBAFD —T——4+tHA
+=A
FEK EEHBARAF (“Lvdong PRC RMB100,000,000 34.5% 34.5% Provision of logistic
Shuiyun Company”) 3 November 2014 A R #100,000,0007T service
FEK FERARRAF Gl e g AR %5
(T4 B KERF) —E-mEF
t+—A=H
@ All the Group's associates are operated in the PRC and are accounted * AEBERAEBRE QA NPELE XKL R

for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

associates is set out below.

HAaRBRREBERIEALR -

BRAKEBERRZMBEERBRE
FHME e
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. PEAZENATIZHER(E)
Guiran Pipeline Company EMEENT
2018 2017
ZF-N\FE —E2—i#F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR®ET T

Current assets mEEE 198,798 173,406
Non-current assets EREBEE 998,298 994,427
Current liabilities mEAaE (260,357) (250,209)
Non-current liabilities EMEBEE (500,285) (570,164)
2018 2017

—E-)\EFE —T—+F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREBFRE AR®TET

Total revenue iy =8 231,273 148,064
Loss for the year KEEEE (11,006) (18,250)
The Group's share of result of associate REBELBERRZ
E (2,201) (3,650)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information PGB ENBERESMBEREA
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate RN ENR 2w 2 REE Y
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: % :
2018 2017
—F—\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETFRE AR®TRT

Net assets of associate BENE 2 FEE 436,454 347,460

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in AEBEREE AR HH
associate R 5] 20% 20%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEEREREBERA
Guiran Pipeline Company 2wz REE 87,291 69,492
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

22 REtBEATIZHER (8)

Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic NLZEIRY 7
2018 2017
—T-0\E S
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Current assets mEBEE 29,386 50,869
Non-current assets EREBEE 1,637 8,608
Current liabilities mBAE (53,333) (80,810)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = —
2018 2017
—E—-N\FE Tt F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR T T
Total revenue 1B U 25 322 2,578
Loss for the year KEEEE (977) (2,300)
The Group's share of result of associate $§J@1£Hﬁﬁ%@ﬁjz
& = =
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information FRBBENSERESMBEREA
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate BRZNBERR 2R 2 REE Y
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: iR -
2018 2017
A S
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Net liabilities of associate BE QR FEE (22,310) (21,333)
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in REBEREE AR HH
associate T 7 2= 2 EE I 20% 20%
Less: unrecognised share of net liabilities of  Ji : RHERE(GEE & A F]
associate Z2FaE 4,462 4,267
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBRNALZEIBY R
Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic 2w 2 RE = —
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic (Continued)
The Group has discontinued recognition of the share of
losses of Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic as of the fact that Jiu An
Shi Shun Logistic’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets.

22. R EBEATBIZHEZR(E)
AEZEIEY 7 ()
AEEDRIFRRBENARSIEY R
TERE BANKSIEWMRS BAE
BB H G EE -
BEAZEIEYRLE, KBRS E

The amounts of unrecognised share of result of Jiu An Xi

Shun Logistic are as follows: LU
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBFT
Unrecognised share of loss of the associate for K i 32 J& {h B & A &) A&
the year FEEIE (195) (460)
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of 2t KR EML B Z QD
the associate Al &5 18 (6,903) (6,708)
Xishui Jingiao Company k£ RE
2018 2017
—B-N\FE —FT—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETT
Current assets MENE B 15,754 6,240
Non-current assets EREBEE 66,146 64,197
Current liabilities nRBEE (54,844) (40,079)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = —
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Total revenue 480 75 40,154 34,401
Loss for the year KEE BB (3,302) (8,688)
The Group's share of result of associate AEERGHERAGZ
E (1,651) (4,344)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Xishui Jingiao Company (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate

22. R EBEATBIZHEZR(E)
Tk 21507 (&)
PR EEREERGANBEBRER
BRy NS AT 2% EEEY

recognised in the consolidated financial statements: iR -
2018 2017
—F-N\%E —E—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBF T
Net assets of associate BENa 2 FEE 27,056 30,358
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in 7N £2 B FA Bt & 2 7]
associate R 2 49.7% 49.7%
13,447 15,088
Goodwill &S 18,837 18,847
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in KEBREBKERB AT
Xishui Jingiao Company 2wz REE 32,284 33,935
Lvdong Shuiyun Company AR E) K E LA
2018 2017
—F—N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Current assets MENE B 74,510 34,056
Non-current assets EREBEE 160,047 151,079
Current liabilities mBAE (123,638) (104,242)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (57,783) (1,560)
2018 2017
—E-NE ZT—LF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Total revenue #8 Ui 25 24,499 222
Loss for the year KEEEE (26,197) (3,955)
The Group's share of result of associate REBEEBE AR Z
E5 (9,038) (1,365)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

22.

23.

122 Yuan

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Lvdong Shuiyun Company (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate

RE) KB LA ()

22. R EBEATBIZHEZR(E)

LM BENBREEGSMBERERA
ERZNBERA] 2 REEY

recognised in the consolidated financial statements: iR -
2018 2017
—FE-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Net assets of associate BE RN ZFEE 53,136 79,333
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in AEBEREE AR AR
associate R 2 L 34.5% 34.5%
18,332 27,370
Goodwill EES 5,765 5,765
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in NEEREEKERF]
Lvdong Shuiyun Company 2D ZEAEE 24,097 33,135
LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 23. REAFEWRKIE
2018 2017
—FE-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
Unsecured long-term receivables R R HA R R
— interest bearing at 9.6% per annum (note a) — 1% F F| E9.6% 5T &
(M 7 a) 5,138 5,138
— non-interest bearing (note b) — 2 B (W &Eb) 62,915 59,181
— interest receivables from deposit paid for — FLUE — B A F
acquisition of an associate (note 24) BEXMiEkE 2 ER
F 2. (Bt 5224) 98,504 32,187
— damage claim from deposit paid for — BLUEE — R B QR
acquisition of an associate (note 24) DX ELEZ
BERERR
(B 5% 24) 19,075 —
185,632 96,506
Less: Amount due within one year and included & : X —FRE|HIF5FA
under current assets (note b) )& E W RIE
(B 5= b) (62,915) (59,181)
122,717 37,325
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

HE—-%

23.

24.

—N\FZAS+—AILEE

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note a:

The amount represents amount due from a former equity owner of
subsidiaries which is unsecured and interest bearing at a fixed rate of 9.6%
per annum. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount is
not expected to be recovered within twelve months from 31 March 2018 and
2017 and accordingly was classified as non-current asset.

Note b:

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group entered into debt
assignment agreements (“Agreements”) with an independent third party.
Pursuant to the Agreements, the Group has agreed to transfer an amount
due from the former equity owner of subsidiaries as mentioned above
and an amount due from a non-controlling equity owner of subsidiaries of
RMB53,168,000 and RMB41,590,000, respectively outstanding at Agreements
date to an independent third party for an aggregate consideration of
RMB90,020,000.

According to the Agreements, 30% of the consideration of RMB27,006,000
was repaid in June 2016. The remaining 70% of the consideration was
scheduled to be repaid within two years from the Agreements date and
included under the current assets. The amounts are unsecured and interest-
free, and measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
at the borrowing rate of 6.31% per annum. The amounts were fully repaid in
April 2018.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE

The amount represents the deposit paid by the acquired
subsidiary BMBE TR EE R AR QA (Guangzhou Juyuan
Investment Development Company Limited) (“Ju Yuan”)
during the year ended 31 March 2017 (as detailed in note
40) for acquisition of 11.5% equity interest of R MR A1t
2B AT (Quanzhou Zhenrong Petrochemical Storage
Company Limited) (“Zhenrong Storage”) which is secured by
certain property, plant and equipment of Zhenrong Storage
and its subsidiary, and is interest bearing at 15% per annum.

In June 2017, the Group had agreed with the other three
investors (the “Three Investors”) of Zhenrong Storage not
to proceed with the proposed acquisition of 11.5% equity
interest in Zhenrong Storage, and the Three Investors shall
jointly and severally repay to the Group the deposit already
paid in the sum of approximately RMB190,748,000 together
with interest. Since the Three Investors have not repaid the
deposit together with the interest thereon or any part thereof
to the Group, the Group filed a request for arbitration to the
China Guangzhou Arbitration Commission (9 Bl & M {F £ &
B ) ("CGAC") against the Three Investors for the claim of
return of the deposit together with interest thereon, damages
and costs related to the arbitration (the “Arbitration”) in
August 2017.

23.

24.

= B R R IE (48)

Bt 7 a:

HESHEENEKRMB AR — BRI REHEAAZ
BRI EER - REEF R EI.6%AHR - AR
REEZAR HEcERHTERA_ZT-N\F
R-E—+F=A=+—HBTEAARKE
Iﬁt“*ﬁ/"—ﬂh@i}ﬁﬁ °©

Mt 3 b:

REBEE-_T—A"F=ZA=1+—HILEFE  ~%£EH
BB E=FRIEEERGZ (R -
BERH  AEBEREBEMABYE = EE e
WK B AR R R A A Z K IE R EWHE AR
z#%lﬂﬂééﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ)\ZwE ZERERGZE
BAEE AR - 251/ A R%S53,168,0007T & A
R ¥41,590,0007T  #2X & % A K %90,020,000
= o

ﬂi%fﬁ% - (B 230% A R #27,006,0007T B 7
—NERNAER - FER70% 2 RETEIHER
Tﬁnﬁﬁﬁﬁtfﬁim ENWFAREEEIRT °
RSB AEIER 2B RIEFERFE631%
RAZRAEEIZBHEKATE - ZZELEE
RZZ—N\FHAEHRMEN -

HUWE—EBEEATZMFZ2
Re
ZpEERE_E—+HF=A=1+—
Elii&ﬁﬁﬂﬁzﬁ%ﬁt%@ﬂ%d\l\l%ﬁ&
BERARARATERITDGER M &F
40) s I R MR AL B B R A A
(MERERDNSRREZENES -
ETARIRKEREEMBARIMNE T
%% M E R EEEERR - WiRFF
K15%5H 8. °

R-ZE—tFX A AEFBERKAE
REM=ZREE(=ZREEEDF]
SR MTERIEWEEBIRE #11.5%
REZRS  BZZREEREH AN
ﬁ%urﬂﬂ$%3®§5%§%&’§zﬁm%@ﬁ
A R #190,748,000 T iR & K Fl &
EHB’\\EA:_%&,%%F']%FT$E.L
%Eﬂuxﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁﬂ,D\jzﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ
CAREBE_ZE—+ENARTEH
Ji)llﬁﬂﬁéia(mﬂlﬁluﬁlﬂﬁ?a
GNRBHZE =R EENHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

24. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN 24. MW BE—RHEBEZEATZTZ

ASSOCIATE (Continued) me (8

In August 2017, the Group also submitted an application RZE—+FN\A TEBTH=%
to the Intermediate People's Court of Guangzhou City, I’ EERBEGEN A R®375,000,0007T
Guangdong Province (B R & B M ™ & A R IE ) ZEERMEBREEMTHRARZER
(the "Intermediate Court") for a preservation order (the (FEERDRERREESHRB (R
"Application for Preservation Order") in respect of the assets BETHALD  AEBEERFOLR
of the Three Investors to the extent of approximately RMB375 HBR—Z—tFN\A+—RBzZzRSE
million. The Group received a civil ruling dated 11 August HEE(RZ2HE]D  BRE2ECH
2017 from the Intermediate Court (the "Preservation Ruling") BIEM AT EOR

in relation to the Application for Preservation Order with the
following ruling:

Effective upon the serving of the Preservation Ruling, the RIERREHTER  —BREERH
bank deposits and/or other assets of the Three Investors Z A A R #375,000,0007T 2 R 1717 5K
shall be seized, confiscated or frozen to the extent of N s BB E A5 A 04 SR U E R
approximately RMB375 million ("Seized Assets"). HIM/REED -
The Preservation Ruling (and the corresponding enforcement HIR AR EME AR Z()RER
notices) was served and became effective on 28 August 2017 B R FE A #ENRES
and 5 September 2017 in relation to (i) the equity investment, B2 1R 2 EE (R AB B 58 &l =017 38 40
and (i) the land use rights, machinery and equipment BEMMRZE—tFENAZTNH
respectively of Zhenrong Storage and its subsidiary. RZZE—+tFENARRAFEERER -
On 9 November 2017, the Group received an arbitral award RZEBE—tF+—ANB NEEHEE
dated 7 November 2017 (the "Arbitral Award") from the BEHREEMNMHZESRHAAR-F—
CGAC which ordered the Three Investors to jointly and tE+—AEB 2 REEH R HEF
severally pay to the Group: R HBES=RKEELR RIHEHR
EENEIETR N
i. the deposit paid of approximately RMB190.75 million; i. BEX iz 89 A R#190,750,000
JT
ii. financing costs for the deposit paid as calculated at a ii. EXfRecmERA - B :
rate of 0.05% per day on:
(@ RMB100 million from 28 December 2015 to the (@ BZZE—AHF+=-A=TN
date of full payment, and HEZZHMMNRBEE - A

R #100,000,0007T 3% & B
0.05% 2 F K& K&

(b) approximately RMB90.75 million from by BZE—RF+—A=1+H
30 December 2015 to the date of full payment; REZBNKAEH DA
R #90,750,0007T & & H

0.05% 2 M &+ &
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_Z—\F=ZA=1+T—HLLFE

24. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN 24. MW BE—RHEBEZEATZTZ

ASSOCIATE (Continued)

iii. interest on the deposit paid as calculated at a rate of
15% per annum on:

(a) RMB100 million from 28 December 2015 to the
date of full payment, and

(b) approximately RMB90.75 million from
30 December 2015 to the date of full payment;

iv.  damages for breach of the relevant agreements of
approximately RMB19.07 million; and

V. costs and expenses of the Arbitration.

As the Group has already obtained the Preservation Ruling
against Zhenrong Storage and its subsidiary, it is entitled
to enforce and realise the assets preserved under the
Preservation Ruling and to use the proceeds therefrom to
satisfy the amounts due by the Three Investors under the
Arbitral Award. The Group has engaged an independent
external valuer to assist in determining the realisable value of
the pledged securities held at 31 March 2018 and concluded
that the realisable value of the Seized Assets is sufficient
to repay the deposit paid, the related interest and the
damages. Accordingly, an interest income of approximately
RMB66,317,000 and the damages claim of approximately
RMB19,075,000 are recognised in profit or loss as set out in
note 9.

The Group considered that the realisation of the Seized
Assets may take a considerable time and accordingly the
deposit paid and the interest and damages claim receivables
were classified as non-current assets. The interest receivable
and the damages claim receivable were included under
"Long-term receivables" as set out in note 23.

mE (@)
i. BEXfR&ZAE B

@ BZE—RAFt+=—A=1+AN
BREEZEHMARIBEE A
R #100,000,0007T 1% & F
15% 2 FIEFTHHE &

b) BZZE—AF+-—A=1+H
EERBMNRBEH  HA
R #90,750,0007T & & F
15% 2 FI K&

v. HEBBZEOESOARRE
19,070,0007T : &

v. MWERZERAREMR-

HRAEBEERSHEIRAEFEK
EfBARZRERTE  HEEER
FARITRERRE2HBEENREZE
ELERUERMERIE  LNEE=
BREERBE MR AEN 2 RE -
AEBELZHE—ZF L INBEER B
PEEMHREERBZLER_Z—N\F
—A=Zt+—HZUBRERBR ¥RAE
MREECAERERERNENEN
&  HAENEREBEERERR - A
Ut - WM FEORTE - A BMANAR
#66,317,000 L R IBEREERRHOAR
#19,075,000 T R 1B 25 BRI T LATERR ©

AEERS  BRNAEEAERE
RERH AREXMESKkEKF
EREERERRIBR/IFERDE
E - BEANERERBERERRG
AW E23ME R MBI FIRIRT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. IBEHIA
The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) ATREAEERTFERRAZE
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the EHBEEEBBIUAREZS -
years.
Fair value
adjustment
of properties
and
intangible
Available-  Accelerated  asset upon  Temporary
for-sale tax business difference on
investment depreciation combination accruals Tax losses Total
EBoHE
VER
OHHE MEHRE BREEZ EHERZ i
R& & AFERE ETHEHE HEGR @t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR

At 31 March 2016 RZZ-A
=B=t+—H = (13,242) (2,926) 1,014 19972 4,818
(Charge) credit to profit or B8 & (M) FTA
loss = (845) 128 (1,137) (6,927) (8,781)
At 31 March 2017 %:?*ti
—A=t+—H = (14,087) (2,798) (123) 13,045 (3,963)
(Charge) credit to B ?E' # (B A
profit or loss — (1,957) 128 4954 (7,135) (4,010)
Charge to other BEMEZEBA
comprehensive gl
income (4,672) — — — — (4,672)
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\¥
=A=f+—-H (4,672) (16,044) (2,670) 4,831 5910 (12,645)
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated Eﬁf@]iﬁAﬁj’ﬂ%{ﬁk/R#&%ﬁﬁ 5 &1
statement of financial position, certain deferred taxation BREFEEENRBEEEERE - LT
assets and liabilities has been offset. The following is R 2 3R B A 7R B 8y IR T B IE
the analysis of the deferred taxation balance for financial mER DT

reporting purposes:

2018 2017
A S

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR FT ARETTT

Deferred tax assets RIEFIHE E — 576
Deferred tax liabilities REEMRIBEE (12,645) (4,539)
(12,645) (3,963)
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25.

26.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Under the EIT law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiary amounting to
RMB332,229,000 (2017: RMB136,869,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unutilised tax losses of approximately RMB129,862,000 (2017:
RMB237,660,000), available for offset against the future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such tax losses of approximately RMB39,395,000 as at
31 March 2018 (2017: RMB86,967,000). Included in the tax
losses are losses of approximately RMB115,991,000 (2017:
RMB224,329,000) that will expire within five years from the
end of the reporting period. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

25. IBEBLIE(F)

BEFRCEMERHRE A-FTZTN
F—A—HAE EHBEWBARKRSE
ZHMERZEE  AHXEN
o RAMBEHRERLRARPENBR
ARG EENEREZEAR
#332,229,0007T (=2 —+F: ARK
136,869,0007T) 1 i iE FE i 18 # & -
PR 7 £ 8] ] 420 o) 8K [0 BT B = KB MO B R
BAJREE B Z 518 T & 1 A] 55 ok &
[E] o

RBEHK AEBEERDEFHE
BB 4 A 129,862,000 (=T —+
F: AR 1237,660,0007T) » A 4 K
KR EF c RZE—NE=ZA=+—
B EEHBEECHZESHEEIE
# N R #39,3950007T (=8 —+ £ :
A R #86,967,0007T) T IARER » Fi1E
EESESRBEHREAFNER
Z BB HARE115991,0007T (—ZF—
+ 6 : A R #224,329,0007T) * H B
BEEBANTEERBIES -

26. AJHHERS

RMB’000
ARETT
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value ELHRFRE MAFE
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—XRFMA—HAH —
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary BERKE-—HNBARAE
(note 40) (Kt 5£40) 202,200
At 31 March 2017 R-ZF—tF=A=1+—8H 202,200
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive R 7N & A E th 2 T W A A 7 3R
income for the year 2N FEWE 18,686
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—N\FE=A=+—H 220,886
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26.

27.

28.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 26. Ot HERE(F)
(Continued)
The balance represents the 19.9998% interest in J& JI|[E B RE R TR E — BB AR
RAEBEEEHEE(BREX) (Guangzhou Hui Yin Wo BRIWEEMNERARERESRLE
Feng Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)) (“Hui (BBR& Z)(ERRKE]) 2199998%
Yin Wo Feng”) acquired upon the completion of acquisition s (FER M EE40) - EIRRE F E
of a subsidiary as detailed in note 40. Hui Yin Wo Feng ERAKE - AEEEZE—RZEY
is principally engaged in equity investment. The Group SNER(LERD - MBI ARRIBEEEET
has engaged an independent external valuer to assist the KERZZE-—N\F=A=+—HzZA
management of the Company in determining the fair value F1E - RAFE - KIAKY18,686,000
of the investment as at 31 March 2018. A fair value gain of TTZAFEW S R E 2R AR
approximately RMB18,686,000 was recognised in the other R o
comprehensive income during the year.
INVENTORIES 27. 58
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT
Raw materials JR % 8,746 7,506
Spare parts and consumable B RIE R M 7,785 8,850
Finished goods AKX G 5,275 10,428
21,806 26,784
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. B 5 & H it FE Wi Bk =X
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Trade receivables B 5 BR X 1,084,114 405,645
Bills receivables J&E W 32 1% — 735
Other receivables H th & M BR K 16,330 13,081
Prepayments T8 3K 569,451 402,378
1,669,895 821,839

The Group generally requires prepayments made by
customers before delivery of goods or provision of services,
except for certain customers to which the Group allows an
average credit period of 30 to 180 days. The Group also
allows customers to settle the trade receivables before the
end of credit period or to make prepayments to the Group
by bills receivables.

Heng Gas Holdings Limited TT= MRRIEKRER A F
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28.
(Continued)

Trade receivables arisen from oil and gas sales contracts are
settled either by bills issued by banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies which are
receivable with an average credit period ranging from seven
days to six months after the date of delivery of commodity
to customers or by telegraphic transfer.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the revenue recognition date:

ABEMRARBESHNZE SRR
RN EBBREEFRAEBRETSE
Apﬁ&ZfE TRHCERESE SFi’J
:.,\HﬁEH@TE'“””EIHﬂé:iﬁ
HEFLAZERNEATE -

NTRZEKGERANZ2I2EZRE
YRR R 2 BR Bk DT

2018 2017
—E—)\£F —E—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR TR ARBTT

Within 30 days 308 A 485,640 373,365
31-90 days 31290H 595,137 991
91-180 days 91£180H 681 2,688
Over 180 days 180H A 2,656 28,601

1,084,114 405,645

The following is an aged analysis of bills receivables based
on the date of receipt of bills:

ATRERKRERARZ BRKER
Z MRl AT

2018 2017
—E-)\EF —ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Within three months =@mARA

— 735

— 735

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the credit quality of the trade receivable balances that
are neither past due nor impaired as at the end of the
reporting period is good as the repayment history of the
debtors is satisfactory.

EREXERFZEFA  AEE GG
BEEFZEEEZREEETFNE
ERFE -ARAIEZEZRE  RBREH
ﬂiﬂﬁﬂi@ﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁz 2 FE WUiR 3%

RHRZEEBERBRI  AREBKA
ZE?KSE@%E&? °
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. B 5 R H b FE W BR 3R (48)
(Continued)
Included in the Group's trade receivable balances are FAREEE 5 YR KA R e 58
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately ER-_ZE-N\F=ZA=+—HEAH
RMB3,337,000 (2017: RMB32,081,000) which are past due at BRaEmELNAEANR3,3370005T (=
31 March 2018, for which the Group has not provided for T —+F: AR¥32081,0007T) Z F&
impairment loss as the directors of the Company are of WBR K - NEE I T ¥ 2 E NI IR
opinion that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group BEER BRAAAEEFA/IEHA
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The amount FIBDATHE - REEY EHRZFLE
were fully settled as at this report date. MR AEAER G - ZERIBRARR
ERHERELEE -
The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due EEHBERREZESRERBERZ K
but not impaired are as follows: B AT
2018 2017
—¥-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR AR®ET T

31-180 days 312180H 681 3,480
Over 180 days 1808 LA & 2,656 28,601
3,337 32,081
All trade receivables are assessed not to be impaired FiBEEZEWERS T EER S
individually and they are further assessed for impairment on WE Bites—PHENERE -
a collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on 7 B 4F 2 A I 5t 5 FE I BR SRR
trade receivables during both years. The Group does not RME NEBTERZSERTR
hold any collateral over these balances. EREF R o
No impairment has been recognised on other receivables T R £F & A I f St B i R W PR SRR
during both years. The directors of the Company are of RBE - RARBEERE - HthEK
the opinion that the other receivables are not impaired as BRI EEAE FREEREBEXE
the amounts mainly represent value-added tax recoverable AN EEER R EHREE D B
and advances to staff which were fully utilised and settled AAONBUEBREE LR TEI 2R
respectively subsequent to the end of the reporting period. 3K e
Transfer of financial assets BEZEoHEE
The followings were the Group's financial assets at the ATREAEERZRERRE BN
end of each reporting period that were transferred to ErHEREEEYRIBEEZSE
banks or suppliers by discounting or endorsing those bills WEEmMEETRTIBEEN 22/
receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not BE BHRASEEITEEEZSER
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these ERcvERRBRBER - HEER
bills receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying REWRERSBGFAGEREEL
amount of the bills receivables and the corresponding BEoRNERRZEBEE 2 2EER
liabilities included in secured borrowings or trade payables B - ZELREENRAEBR 256
respectively. These financial assets are carried at amortised IR BRAREHKAANR -
cost in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. B R HMEUWRRR(E)
(Continued)
Bills receivables discounted or endorsed BHEXEFEZENKEE
2018 2017
—E-)\EF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFRT ARETRE

Carrying amount of bills receivables from JEW N E P R 28R
external customers HE — 735
Carrying amount of trade payables and B5RNERKEME
other liabilities B2 REE — (735)
29. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 29. EW—EBE AT RIA
2018 2017
—E-NE ZT—LF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFR ARBETT
Amount due from an associate J& W — il Bk & 2 B 3008 603 —
The amount represent receivables for sale of LNG which are HASBEARLERIERARME £
aged within 30 days. The amount is unsecured, interest-free 2RI B30BAZ R AR - HHEA S
and repayable on demand. BRAEER 2OREREREE-
30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON- 30. FEUPH B A S i R Em B
CONTROLLING EQUITY OWNERS OF BARIE
SUBSIDIARIES
2018 2017
—B-N\E e
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR®ET T

EMBRREBRDERAR] (Guizhou Gas Group EINAREE KB HR

Corporation Ltd.) (Note a) ~FA (M 5Ea) — 11,606

SRR BEBE B R AR (Heze Transportation  SHERBEEEGR A A
Group Company Ltd.) (Note b) (Fft 3Eb) 1,204 1,204
1,204 12,810
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30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON- 30. FE Wi Bl /B8 2 5] I §22 A o 1
CONTROLLING EQUITY OWNERS OF BARE(E)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note a:  The amount represents prepayment for purchase of LNG and Mitka: HHBSEARBERIERARMZMS
trade receivable, which aged within 30 days based on the date of ZHEMNFRESEKER  Rik&E
delivery of goods. R & m B HE30K °
Note b:  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. MizZb: HESLELARER S2SREREX
BE -

31. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY 31. BEl—Z2FFEANTRIE

2018 2017
—E-)\EF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

EMT= 8RB R 2AA (Guangzhou Circle EMNITZ e RE R AT

Energy Company Limited) (“Circle Energy”) [ 7T = &8 R J (Bt 53)

(note) 1,866 1,878
The maximum amount outstanding during the year is as REARKBEZRRESBAT
follow:

2018 2017

—T-0\E —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T T

Circle Energy TLF BE IR 1,878 68,878
Note: A company which Mr. Wang is a key management personnel. The Mie: TEEEEFEZEEEBABZAT -
amount represents prepayment for purchase of LNG and trade HeBERBBERIECRAEMEMNZ A
receivable, which aged within 30 days based on the date of delivery NREBEZXEAHAERK /A ZE
of goods. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on SEWEX - HEeRAEER 22

demand. REARERER -
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32.

33.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 32. EMMRITHER RITER
BALANCES AND CASH B &
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank ROEREE2EERE KR EA
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. REZEASKAT ZREBRITER - B
Bank balances carry interest at market rate of 0.35% (2017: —ENERZIE—LEtF=ZHA=1+—
0.35%) per annum, as at 31 March 2018 and 2017. B RITEREMISFERNZE035% (=
Tt F:035%) T8 °
The pledged bank deposits carrying interest rates at EEMBITHERIRFNX03% (ZF
0.3% (2017: ranging from 0.3%) per annum, amounting to —tF:03%R)FTE - HPFEBERA
RMB292,916,000 (2017: RMB186,099,000) have been pledged R#292916,000L(ZE—tF AR
to secure bills payables repayable within six months and bank #186,099,0007T ) B IR LATE R AR S
borrowings. Pledged bank deposits of RMB3,000,000 as at BAREE 2 BNRENRITEE -
31 March 2018 (2017: nil) have been pledged to secure bank RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H AR%
borrowings which will be released upon the settlement. 3,000,000 E E M RITER(ZE —
T F ) BRI AE GRS E R R
BRZIRITEE -
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. B 5 & H it FE 4 BR =X
2018 2017
—E-N\EF e
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Trade payables B O EMER 675,819 309,911
Bills payables A ER& 533,140 593,664
Other payables H fth & 5 BR X 41,492 44,861
Other tax payables H b B B 18 22,787 18,157
Consideration payable ERRE 16,735 16,735
Receipts in advance 78 U BR X 107,103 155,940
Compensation payable FE B 915 10,255
Payroll payables EBRITE 304 230
1,398,295 1,149,753

Trade payables arisen from oil and gas purchase contracts
are granted by suppliers with an average credit period
ranging from seven days to six months after the bills of lading
date of delivery, and trade payables arisen from production
and sales of LNG are granted by suppliers with an average
credit period ranging from 30 days to 90 days after date of
delivery.

AHRRARBECGHZEZEMNIE
RIOHEREMNEREAMRLAEE
NEATEZFHEERRE - £E
MRHEBIERARZBHEMNERRTD
HERME XN HBZ0EERTF
ZFHEEHRE -
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33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Besides, certain suppliers will also require to have
prepayments received before the supply of materials.
The Group will arrange for certain of its prepayments or
settlement of trade payable by bills payables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented, based on the invoice date, at the end of the
reporting period:

33. E5 & H 1t FE 3 BR 5K (48)

BESN - B T R IR R A
FHAT U ER TR A5 R o AN 6R B A 2 B S A
HETHANRINBNEREREES
FERTRR AR -

AT A P 2 5 8 5 FE AN AR 5N 5 58
RREZHHETZRE D

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBFT

Within 90 days 90H A 671,615 303,401
91-180 days 9121808 1,064 2,643
181-365 days 1812 365H 389 1,945
Over 1 year i —F 2,751 1,922
675,819 309,911

The following is an aged analysis of bills payables based on
the date of issue of bills:

NTREBEEZETERBEEHETZENR
B ARl oA

2018 2017
—F-N\%FE —E—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Within three months =@ AR 487,140 233,600
Three months to six months —@A=@EA — 360,064
Over six months BiENEA 46,000 —
533,140 593,664

34. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 34. EftEEE ATIRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Amounts due to associates AR RSNGIE /@ 38,505 12,949

The amounts represent payables for purchase of liquefied
natural gas which are aged within 30 days. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

35 RITRHMEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Bank borrowings RITEE 478,760 321,180
Other borrowings HMEE 143,948 118,528
622,708 439,708
Bank and other borrowings repayable: FEEE 2 RIT R EAth
BE:
— Within 1 year — 15K 587,708 415,708
— More than 1 year, but not exceeding 2 years — HBBIFETBIBE2F 24,000 9,000
— More than 2 years, but not exceeding — HBE2F BT BB
5 years 54 11,000 12,000
— More than 5 years — 5F M+ — 3,000
622,708 439,708
Less: Amount due within one year and shown & : IR —FREIH K F] A
under current liabilities mMEBBEBEZRE (587,708) (415,708)
Amount repayable after one year and shown AR —FREERIIA
under non-current liabilities ERBEEZHRA 35,000 24,000
Analysed as: Pakiv= 2
Secured BHEH 622,708 439,708
Unsecured 1 4K R — —
622,708 439,708
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35.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

The bank and other borrowings due for repayment are
classified based on the scheduled repayment dates as set out
in the relevant loan agreements. The secured bank loans as
at end of each reporting period were secured by the Group's

assets and guaranteed by related parties as set out in note
42.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group's bank
and other borrowings are as follows:

35 |ITRAMEBEE ()

IHEEE ZRITREMERTVIRE
BMEXMEMEBEEEERNIE -
RERERARZBEFRITERTIA
AEEZEEREARRABREAL
YEfR - BT SEA2F #K -

AREZRITREMEE ZERFF
K(FEGHMNEHR) Z&EEMT -

2018 2017
—E—-)\£F —E—+tF

Fixed-rate bank borrowings EBRITE
Fixed-rate other borrowings B HEHAME
Variable-rate bank borrowings FEIRITEE

4.79%-7.00%
10.00%
6.09%-6.60%

5.20%—7.84%
5.00%
6.15%—-8.10%

Variable-rate bank borrowings amounted to RMB76,000,000
and RMB56,000,000 at 31 March 2018 and 2017, respectively.
The borrowings are arranged at the interest rate based on
benchmark interest rate from the People’s Bank of China plus,
if applicable, a premium.

No bank and other borrowing is denominated in foreign
currency as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B&F
Nominal
value per Number of
share shares Amount
BREE % 5 & B &
HK$ HK$'000
B IT FAT
Authorised: JETE
As at 1 April 2017, 31 March RZE—LFMA—
2017 and 31 March 2018 H-—ZE—+4H=H1
=t+t—HE=ZZ—N
F=A=+—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER:
As at 1 April 2016 RZE—R"FMNA—H 0.1 5,683,635,248 568,363
Issue of shares EATRR D 0.1 834,703,704 83,470
As at 31 March 2017 and R-ZE—+F=A=1+—
31 March 2018 Bk—_ZE—N\F=ZA=
+—H 0.1 6,518,338,952 651,833
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERAEMIEDL 22 :
RMB'000
ARET T
At 31 March 2018 RZE-—N\F=ZA=+—H 549,014
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—8H 549,014

On 13 February 2017, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement [”)
with the subscriber. Under the Subscription Agreement |,
331,000,000 subscription shares will be allotted and issued
by the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.68 per
subscription share. The aggregate subscription price for all
the subscription shares is approximately HK$225,080,000
(equivalent to RMB199,365,000) and the subscription
was completed on 24 February 2017 and 331,000,000
subscription shares were allotted and issue accordingly.

R-ZTE—+t&-_A+=H AR aH
RBATLRBEHZ(RERZD -
RIEREHZ  ARABERERE
% R B8 A% £70.687% T BC B K B 1T
331,000,0008% R & I 1n - FT B R B
R 1D 2 48 3R BE (8 49 5225,080,0007% JT
(A E N A R #199,365,0007T) - A&
EEER-_TE—tHF-_A=-+WMARE
A% B.331,000,0005% 73 88 % {5 E #8 & th
T LA Bg 2% f2 39T o
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36.

37.

138 Yuan

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 21 March 2017, the Company entered into another
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement [l")
with the subscriber. Under the Subscription Agreement I,
503,703,704 subscription shares will be allotted and issued
by the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.675 per
subscription share. The aggregate subscription price for all
the subscription shares is approximately HK$340,000,000
(equivalent to RMB301,485,000). The subscription was
completed on 31 March 2017, and 503,703,704 subscription
shares were allotted and issued accordingly.

Upon completion of the abovementioned two subscriptions
agreements, the issued share capital of the Company is
enlarged from 5,683,635,248 shares to 6,518,338,952 shares.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 21 September 2015, 6 October 2015 and 9 October
2015, the Company entered into several subscription
agreements with Kylin Offshore Engineering Pte Ltd (the
“Subscriber”) for the subscription of a convertible bond in
the principal amount of US$10,000,000 (“Convertible Bond").

Subscriber agreed to subscribe the convertible bond in the
principle amount of US$10,000,000, and the subscription
money in the total sum of US$10,000,000 was paid on
26 October 2015.

The Convertible Bond can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$0.65 per share, subject to the fixed
exchange rate of HK$7.7495 to US$1.0000, and the anti-
dilutive adjustment, anytime from 22 October 2015 (the
issue date) to the fifth business day prior to the 16 October
2017 (the Maturity Date). The Subscriber shall have the
rights to convert the whole or part of the outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Bond during the
conversion period. The coupon rate is 6% per annum and is
payable quarterly on 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and
31 December. Unless previously converted or cancelled, all
convertible bond shall be redeemed at 100% of principle
amount, and settled in US$ on the Maturity Date. There is no
early redemption option by the Subscriber. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, there is no conversion exercised and
the Convertible Bond was fully redeemed.
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36.

37.

B A& (48)
RZZE—+E=A=-+—H8 FArH
RBATLBIN—DREBEHE(RE
WD) - BERBEHZEI - AQRH
EREBETRRBERD0.6757% Tt %
K 2 17503,703,704 KRB 5 - FT B
B D 2 #5R 88 {8 49 5340,000,000
7 T (R & A A R #301,485,0007T) °
RBEHER-_Z—tF=A=1+—
H 52 X B 503,703,704 0% 2 B A% 15 © 48
&t T DARE 2% K2 3597 o

LMD BEBRETKE  AAFZ
B 2% 17 I AN 5,683,635, 248 8% I% 17 12
K E6,518,338,952% ML 15 ©

o] % iz 18 7
R-F-—RFNA=t—H =F—H
F+ARNABER=ZZE—RFTANA ' K
AR B HKylin Offshore Engineering
Pte Ld((RBADR BE R T H
10,000,0003% JT .2 7] #2 i% 18 &5 ([ A &
BEFDIILZ D RBE = -

RE AR ERE X% 510,000,000
TTZABEES  ARRBEBARE
10,000,000 LER = —RHFF+AZ
+RB XM

AR ESARFR0.65E TEE A
RRAF 2Lk - WEBLR77495% T
H1.0000F T2 Bl FIEREITRE
BEBZZ—RAF+A=-+=RH(ET
AzE=—F—tF+A+-BEHA)
AMERELEEDHMBEREL X &%
AR NEBHE REAGEER
EERBHOAIRKRESFNREELRS
o ZEEBRAN BAN=A=
+—H ANA=+H -NA=Z+HK
T A=+ —BEREFEXM - BRERE
BERSFHEIN AT RRESRY
FEREEBIRAS T Z100%EE » I
INETTHEHE - RBALKIRTE D H
B OREE-_Z-N\E=ZA=1+—8
IHFEE WEETTMERBABR
BAOELEBED -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A B AR T AT

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

37.

38.

CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued)

The Convertible Bond contains two components for
accounting purposes: a liability component and an
embedded derivative component, being the conversion
options derivatives. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 16.64% per annum.

The movement of the liability component of the Convertible
Bond for the year are set out as below:

37. Tk fE 5 (&)

REFENMS  JTRRESFBEESA
B R AR P14 T B (B) A% 4 67 4
TH)M{ED - BEIMN N EREF
R 516.64% °

AEEAMBEEFBENOHEBH
FIEAT :

2018 2017
—F-N\E 2+
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Liability component B & 1
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year F¥IERMEE 65,200 56,054
Redemption of Convertible Bond i o AT # BR B 55 (66,217) —
Effective interest charged to profit or loss REZATKROER
(note 11) 8 (H EE11) 5,699 9,538
Interest paid B F & (2,271) (4,060)
Exchange differences PE X =% (2,411) 3,668
Carrying amount at the end of the year FAREEE = 65,200
Analysis for reporting purpose: HERAEMIEL 2
DHT
Current Nk — 65,200
Non-current FE B — —
— 65,200

EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

The US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,495,000 or
RMB63,492,000) Convertible Bond as set out in note
37 contains two components, a liability element of
HK$64,805,000 (equivalent to RMB53,095,000) at initial
recognition and embedded derivative element attributable
to the conversion option of HK$22,741,000 (equivalent to
RMB18,632,000) resulted in a fair value loss of HK$10,051,000
(equivalent to RMBS8,235,000) on initial recognition. The
conversion option embedded in the instrument is presented
as derivative financial instrument in the consolidated
statement of financial position and are measured at fair value
subsequent to initial recognition with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

3. MARFTETR

Bt $£37F7 #(10,000,000% 7T (F8 & R
77,495,000 7T 3k A R %63,492,000
MABBEESFBFERYBER
564,805,000 (& W A R ¥
53,095,0007T) 2 & 1& & F& (522,741,000
BT (FEHE R A K #18,632,0007T) # %
EEZBMARPTETEMIH - BER
)95 T R I 2= A A B E518110,051,000
75 7T (18 8 W A R #8,235,0007T) » T
B WA 2 AR TV AR A B % AR R
KA AETESB TR IRV
BRERATEFE BATFEES
RIBEANER °
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38. EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there is no conversion
exercised and the Convertible Bond was fully redeemed. A
gain on fair value change of RMB14,939,000 was recognised
in the profit or loss (2017: loss on fair value changes of
RMB1,775,000).

Tt

1,775,0007T) °

The movement of the option component of the Convertible

73/\\\%2%‘5:? )\iiﬁf‘l' HIEF
B UEETEMNERATRRES
ERE2EED - AFEEZHREA
Eﬁg14,‘?39000ﬁ57§"%ﬁmﬁ§A (=
AFTEEZHEREARK

REZ AR E SR RO & B

Bond for the year is set out as below: o
2018 2017
—B-N\F el
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Embedded derivative component MARPTETE LG
Fair value at the beginning of the year FHRFE 15,547 12,941
(Gain) loss on fair value change during the year F R 2 F{E 2 &) (Y 5)

(note 10) & 18 (M 5£10) (14,939) 1,775
Exchange differences fE X =% (608) 831
Fair value at the end of the year FRAFE = 15,547

2018 2017
—T-0\E —t &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Analysis for reporting purpose: ?JE HwABRMIELZ
DHT
Current mE — 15,547
Non-current FE T B — —
= 15,547
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38.

39.

EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES (Continued)

The fair values of the embedded derivatives at 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2017 were determined by reference
to a valuation conducted by an independent valuer using
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs and methodology
used for the calculation of the fair values of the embedded

38. MARTETR(E)

R_E—NEF=Z/F=F—"HEK_ZT—
tF=ZA=t+—HOBRARTETA
AREEDE2EZEFBUGEMRA ZE
N ETEENETNHEET © 5
BERAXNTETIENRAFEMABHE

derivatives were as follows: MAEWMAT:

At At
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
NRZB—N\E R=-ZT—+tF
Convertible Bond iR X EH =A=+—-H =A=t+-—H
Share price % & HK$0.75
— 0.75% 7T
Risk-free rate 4 & [ b =R — 0.403%
Time to maturity AR 0.56 year
— 0.56%F
Dividend yield fi% B = — 0%
Volatility R B — 40.99%

INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. MBAT&EH

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

Proportion of equity
interest held by non-
controlling equity

BEEAFEREDZH L ENBL

AEE

(Loss) profit allocated to

Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary owners non-controlling interests controlling interests
FERESHEAAFAZ TERFPEERERZ
MEASERE 1% 23 L 1 (E548) & F RatEiERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
—F-N\E ZEB—+F ZF-N\E —T—tF ZF-NE —F—+F
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBTT ARETRE ARKETR
Xingxing Energy EEgR 31.0% 31.0% 14,626 (6,498) 83,534 68,908
Huixin Energy & & 82 R 31.0% 31.0% 12,113 (14,975) (15,889) (28,002)
Huaheng Energy ETER 50.3% 50.3% 3,181 3,042 39,594 36,412
Individually immaterial BE & TE
subsidiaries with non-  K# A &
controlling interests & 4 25 2 B N/A N/A
=N FER T iE A 1,458 (2,225) 9,584 2,327
31,378 (20,656) 116,823 79,645

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

TXEINBEAERFEEER AL
BEMBARZHMBEMBE - TX
P 8081 75 8 KL 2 45 5 [ 7 B 4K 8K A
ZEH e
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Xingxing Energy:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIEH (F)

2018 2017

—F-N\EFE —E—tF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARSBFT ARET T

Current assets MEEE 327,260 182,475

Non-current assets IERBEE 231,150 252,810

Current liabilities mEBAE (288,945) (213,005)

Non-current liabilities ERB ARG — —

Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZAN2Q R #E A A B 5 # &= 185,931 153,372

Non-controlling interests JE ¥ A% = 83,534 68,908

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARSTT ARETTT

Revenue Wz 489,760 466,179

Expenses B X (442,575) (487,145)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income — FREH (BB R 2|

(expense) for the year WA (B ) 48 %8 47,185 (20,966)

Profit (loss) attributable to: AR A £ FE Al & Fl
(E518)
Owners of the Company RRAREEB A 32,559 (14,468)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR = 14,626 (6,498)
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

39. EBASI&ER(8)

(Continued)
Xingxing Energy: (Continued) EERER: (&)
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARSBFT ARET T
Net cash from (used in) operating activities KEEEEE (FTFE) 2
e FE 25,062 (120,408)
Net cash from investing activities REZPMBZRE
F 30,547 53,323
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BEEHFIFE)MBZ
ReFH (42,193) 65,405
Net cash inflow (outflow) BE2RACKT) F5 13,416 (1,680)
Huixin Energy: EZEIR:
2018 2017
—E—-N\FE T4
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARSFT ARET T
Current assets mENE E 101,675 113,244
Non-current assets EREBEE 335,026 357,340
Current liabilities mBAaE (487,956) (556,371)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE = (4,539)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZAN2Q Al #E A A &5 # 25 (35,366) (62,324)
Non-controlling interests JE A% = (15,889) (28,002)
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

3. BASIEH (F)

(Continued)
Huixin Energy: (Continued)

EZE . (&)

2018 2017
—E—-)N\%F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
Revenue Wz 473,168 345,533
Expenses 3 (434,097) (393,837)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income FEEMEBE)LEER
(expense) for the year WA (FX) @58 39,071 (48,304)
Profit (loss) attributable to: AR A £ FE Al & F
(E518) :
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE7 =N 26,958 (33,329)
Non-controlling interests JEVE R B o= 12,113 (14,975)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities KEEBRE ()2
IReFE 50,009 (39,299
Net cash from (used in) investing activities BEEEE(FTFE) 2
e HER 29,188 (184)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEED (FTRE) S22
Re TR (76,829) 37,459
Net cash inflow (outflow) Be2RACRE) F8 2,368 (2,024)
Huaheng Energy: ETER -
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Current assets mENE E 38,159 47,065
Non-current assets EmBEE 180,155 163,337
Current liabilities nBEE (104,614) (114,028)
Non-current liabilities IERBEFE (35,000) (24,000)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR FI# B A E15# &= 39,106 35,962
Non-controlling interests IE 17 I 39,594 36,412
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. MEBATESE (&)
(Continued)
Huaheng Energy: (Continued) EDER: (M)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Revenue Wz 191,267 168,149
Expenses i3 (184,941) (162,102)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEHMNREESEA
for the year 48 %8 6,326 6,047
Dividend g5 = 10,000
Profit attributable to: ATA TSR
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ RSN 3,145 3,005
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = 3,181 3,042
Net cash from operating activities REXBREZHE 2
F R 57,196 3,139
Net cash used in investing activities REZGMAEZE S
F (17,170) (21,225)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BREER ()G
REFH (41,752) 36,786
Net cash (outflow) inflow BeORd)RAFHE (1,726) 18,700

40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
On 21 March 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the
registered share capital of Ju Yuan for a consideration of
RMB1. This acquisition has been accounted for using the
purchase method. The amount of gain on bargain purchase
arising as a result of the acquisition was RMB339,000. Ju Yuan
is principally engaged in the investment holding.

40. KB B A
R_ZT—+E=A-"+—B £&H
DRE AR TR ER T2 BT
Ao ZUWEFE AU E A ESREE -
W g 2 & (B U W e 8 A R #5339,000
Lo BTEFERERETR -
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40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

| Statements

40. W HEFI B 2 B (&)

(Continued)

Consideration transferred RMB
EEENRE AR
Cash Re 1
Acquisition-related costs were insignificant and have WES AR A A E X B I EGHER
been excluded from the cost of acquisition and have BAA MeRGeaEakEMmeHE
been recognised as an expense in the period within the WASmK 2 [TTHRAZIEE TERA

“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated

HAR -

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

RKBERHEKRBZEERDHERZ

acquisition are as follows: BEWNT:
RMB’'000
AR TR
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate RWE-—HBEE ANz ES 190,748
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 202,200
Long-term receivable K H e W s 1E 32,187
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR 3
Tax payable JE A B 18 (1,545)
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A fE S BR K (3,461)
Other borrowings EMEE (419,793)
Net assets acquired EWEFEEE 339

The fair value of long-term receivable at the date of

acquisition amounted to RMB32,187,000.

RERH  REERWHREZAFE
7 A R %32,187,0007T °

Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition: W g 7 o B B W A
RMB’000
AREFR
Consideration transferred EEERE —
Less: Net assets acquired B BB R A E (339)
Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition W B8 & & 2 % 8 W B8 I 25 339
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40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 40. W HEFI B 2 B (&)
(Continued)

RMB’000
ARBTR

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Ju Yuan: WEEBTZIWE&HTNEHE:
Cash consideration paid BENEREENRE —
Less: bank balances and cash acquired BBz RITERRES (©)
3

Gain on bargain purchase of RMB339,000 arose in the
acquisition of Ju Yuan is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

No revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 is generated
from Ju Yuan nor contribution to the result for the year from
Ju Yuan.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2016, total
group revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 would not
have changed and loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
would have been RMB101,732,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 April 2016, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and loss of the
Group had Ju Yuan been acquired at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2017, the directors have determined
borrowing costs based on the funding levels, credit ratings
and debt/equity position of the Group after the business
combination.

41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the

Group, in funds under the control of trustee.

41.

WHEBTEEZHZEBRBRKS ARYK
339,000t AR & B i K H A 2 E WA
ﬁ& 2% A EE ;wu °

BRIRBE_T—tF=A=1+—H
LTFEYEELEMEE BFEE
BB MER -

W BER=ZT—"FHA—BZK -
BHE=Z—tF=A=+— Htﬁr
ZEERGRBEREFTEMES

Z—tF=A=+— EtifZ%@
& & A R¥5101,732,000T © #5ZE &R
EHRFPRSE  AORBBRIKEE
RZE—RNFEOA—BREK ' ~&EH

REREXRNOK S RRERE  TE
BIERRRERMEZTEA -
BEERIKALERBE_FT—tF=A=

T-HALFEZFNRBRETRAE
BzlEE | WakERE  EFR
BAKSEREREHFRZBENRTE

EETRREY, REKTEEEE
R -
iR K18 # &t &l

AEEREMBREEZGERER
RyBHEREE(RESDFTE -
AElCEEREEARN ZESR
B EBAKEZEESFRE -
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 41. BkEFIET 8 (&)
(Continued)
For members of the MPF Scheme, the Company contributes RAT RRESETEIK BT ER R
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which REBIEKARZS% (EETRIELSE
contribution is matched by employees but subject to a BHR) BREESTHKH1,500%
maximum amount of HKD1,500 (equivalent to RMB1,330) per T (HHERAR1,3300L) ' BB INE
month for each employee thereafter, which is matched by HERRER - I AEE T BEK
employee. In addition, the Group's contribution to a state- &R 7 R RRE A G &) 2 R TR B
managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC are expensed HA B 51| 4E 7 2 - i AP B IR ARG A
as fall due while the state government in the PRC undertakes FIERBARARKRRPEZEERRINK
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing BEZRERHN - XEBAKIEK
and future retirees of the qualified staff in the PRC. The R 2 & T b & B R (AR AR 48 A 51 &I it
Group is required to contribute certain percentage of payroll TUNBEANERES -
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or loss RiZaBRRREMEERARK B
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HERANNKR 2 BRBRAREE RS
comprehensive income represents contributions payable to B IRt 8RR 2 E b R 2 i
the schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules Koo
of the schemes.
The total expense recognised in profit or loss of B iRz ARKE486,0007T (=
RMB7,486,000 (2017: RMB5,276,000) represents contributions Z—+4F: AR#¥5,276,0007T) 2 A X
paid to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the RBENEASEERA@AG RGP
rules of the respective plans. IRzt R M Eet 8l e 2tk -
42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 42. EERH
The following assets were pledged at end of each reporting TREERSREARDSTER - £
period as collaterals for certain banking facilities granted to RASEEERE TRITHE ZEH
the Group: o
2018 2017
ZF-N\F —T—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARETT
Other property, plant and equipment EMyE - BERKRE 446,199 510,016
Prepaid lease payment TE 1 & 23,156 21,145
Pledged bank deposits B RITIF 295,916 186,099
765,271 717,260
As at the end of each reporting period, equity interests in REREHAR BEFTHBRF 2 RE
certain subsidiaries were pledged to banks to secure loan EEATRIT ERAFSEERZE
facilities granted to the Group. TEEZHEM -
Heng Gas Holdings Limited TT= MRRIEKRER A F
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42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the other borrowing of HK$180,000,000
(equivalent to RMB143,948,000) as set out in note 35 is
secured by (i) the charge over the entire issued share capital
of Fully World Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, to which Firmwill Investment Limited, another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, execute as a security in
favour of the lender, and (ii) a floating charge over all or any
part of the property and/or assets of Fully World Limited to
be created by Fully World Limited as security in favour of the
Lender.

42.

43. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a) Operating lease commitments

43.

EEBRME)
R-ZBE—-NEFE=A=+—8 W35
B # 2180,000,0008 7Tt (HEE M A B
#£143,948,0007T) 2 E b f& B Th A (i) 5b
LEAERAR(AEE —H2EWB
DR EHEBITRAFTR L 2L
MALEEZ—H2EWNBRATERRK
BERARIUNE R BT ARILZITF
RIERER RNEEBRAFNUNE
FARX=m ATEERR AR MR I
ERBLMER  REEBTRILZ
EREBZ eI T KA o

RERSAEH
a) KBEHERE

The Group as lessee 2018 2017
AEEERBEBEAN —E-N\fE —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFR ARETT
Minimum lease payments paid under REEENZHAE
operating leases for its office premises HELEHOXEIES
during the year 1,397 3,047

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

RBEHR - ARERET AR
HEEHOEN 2 REKEH
SAEZ BB RET

follows:
2018 2017
—B-0\E —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR T T
Within one year —FR 2,398 1,257
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEZREF - BEEEM
&2 1,449 2,551
3,847 3,808

Operating lease payments represented rental payable
by the Group for certain office premises. Leases were
negotiated for an average term of one to two years.

REMEFXBEAKERE T
MAEMEENZHESE - BT
REmEK - FHOEMR—EM
&£ o
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43. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

43. ZERIAER (&)

(Continued)
b) Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2018, the Group issued financial

guarantee to the banks in respect of bank loans
obtained by associates of RMB135,000,000 (2017:
RMB135,000,000), representing the amount that could
be required to be paid if the guarantee was called upon
in entirety by the bank. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee
contract is insignificant at initial recognition and the
directors consider that the possibility of the default of
the associate involved is remote, accordingly, no value
has been recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at the end of reporting
period. Should the actual outcome be different from
expected, provision for losses will be recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts
(which include amounts due to associates, bank and other
borrowings and convertible bond disclosed in notes 34, 35,
37 and 38 respectively, net of bank balance and cash) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issue, the issue of new
debts or the redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 45. €T R
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) =Z=MITEADHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables (including bank ER N ERER(BE
balance and cash) RITHEBNIRE) 1,826,486 1,179,976
AFS financial asset AtHESREE 220,886 202,200
Financial liabilities EMBE
Amortised cost YN 1,929,618 1,511,440
FVTPL BRRAFEFAEREE
Embedded derivatives BARPTETA — 15,547
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEEBREEHERBKE

The Group’s major financial instruments are trade and
other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
equity owners of subsidiaries, long-term receivables,
deposit paid for acquisition of an associate, amount
due from an associate, amounts due from related
parties, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, available-for-sale investment, trade and other
payables, amounts due to associates, amount due to
a non-controlling equity owner of a subsidiary, bank
and other borrowings, embedded derivatives and
convertible bond. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are sets
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEEZEIESRTABREES
R EA U ARTR - AT B A R
ZHEREEERA ZKE
REIE MR - B U — B
ERFIZENRS - B M
ERAIA - BRABEALZ
TR BEEMRITER - RITE
phkRe AHLERE  BS
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BEREREBANRE  RITRE
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BRES ZFEMITAZH
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BERBEEEZERFERKE(E)

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45. R T R (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)
(Continued)

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market
risks of changes in exchange rates and interest rates
and other price risk. There has been no significant
change to the Group's exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk over
the years.

Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have entered into
certain foreign currency transactions, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Assets
BE
2018

5 B &

AEBEZEGRAREZRER
Ko M| R 8y 7 T 5 L B e B A (B
RER  NZEFE  AKEE
zmsRBRAEEEREE
ZEBZ T AL EBERNES o

& %A IR
ARRBZHMBRRCAILE
THINER S - BUE A5 B RS
BEE B o

RI|BERR - AEBEAINEEHE
ZENEERERABE LKA
(ERUNNE

Liabilities
BfE
2017 2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—+F ZTB-N\E —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'‘000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFR AR®TT AREFR AR®BTT

United States dollars (“USD") ZE st ([ZET)) 1,043 378,091 — 68,721

HKD BT 1,754

9,046 145,170 —

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. 5% (2017:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
for the year (2017: a decrease in loss for the year) where
RMB weakening 5% against the relevant currencies. For
a 5% strengthens of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit (2017: loss) for the year.

45. ﬁmmla(mﬁ)

(b)

BERBEEEZERFERKE(E)

EEE b (E)

TEREFNAEEBHARBETH
RINE EF RN #S5% (— T —+
F 5% ZHRAEFE - MEE
DITEBTFEAINESEZ &
STHEBIEE - WRREHRN
GNBETE R F)5% (— T — 4
5%) 1EE X - 5% (ZF—+
Fi5%)IMEBEE ABRI
ERINERBEFRBZHZE
ttT * Iﬁﬁa‘@}ﬁ”‘}ﬂ\ﬁgET

%mJ\EMR*HF& i%%ﬂéfﬁs%
P B AR s A (=T —
TF AFEEBERRD) c ARK
HBEBINE T ES%E - HARFE
B (T —tF B kE
REEBZHREE -

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
UsD ETT
Impact on the profit (2017: loss) ¥T$¢f£)ﬁﬁﬂ(—é—t¢ :
for the year BRIZZE 52 15,469
HKD BT
Impact on the profit (2017: loss) HAFEmHM (T —tF:
for the year BRIZZE (7.171) 378
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank balances and the variable rate bank borrowings
which carry at prevailing deposit interest rates and
variable rate based on the interest rates quoted by the
People’'s Bank of China, respectively.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed rate pledged bank deposits, long-term
receivables, deposit paid for acquisition of an associate
and fixed rate bank and other borrowings. The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank balances and bank borrowings at the end
of each reporting period which was assumed to be
outstanding for the whole year and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the year in the
case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease for variable rate bank
borrowings is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rate.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 50
basis points in respect of bank borrowings and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit (2017: loss) would decrease/increase (2017:
increase/decrease) by approximately RMB323,000 (2017:
RMB238,000) for the year.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by
50 basis points in respect of bank balances and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit (2017: loss) would increase/decrease (2017:
decrease/increase) by approximately RMB213,000 (2017:
RMB2,262,000) for the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk on embedded
derivatives component of the Convertible Bond for the
year ended 31 March 2017 as set out in note 39.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group is
required to estimate the fair value of the derivative
component of the Convertible Bond (the conversion
option), with changes in fair value to be recognised
in the profit or loss as long as the Convertible Bond
is outstanding. The fair value will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in the Company’s share price and share price
volatility.

45. M T A (&)

(b)

BBERBEERERKE (&
A=k (R

FI G EE (&)
WEBRITEEZMEXLT T
B 50 3 M P A H il B 8 4 15

NE S BIREBRAFEE 2B
BEMCE—+F BB ER
LM T — LS
) 49 A R 323,000 (= &
—+t4F: AR#238,0007T) °

WBEBIBITTEHRZAELEH] T
B 50K Bh i AT A H fib & 21 4 45
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BEF(ZE—F: FiB) g%
m/ mb(ZE—tF:@WLS
#hn) 49 A R #213,000L (=
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45. €T R (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEEBREEHERBEE)

(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
10% higher and lower in the share price of the Company
and all other input variables of the valuation model
were held constant.

10% higher

£ F#10%
2018
—F-N\E —T—

BRESH
TRABAEEHANRR]IE L
TR T#10% - mEEEXME
Hi b A BB T8 28~
o

10% lower

TE10%
2017 2018 2017
+tF ZB-N\FE —_T—+tF

RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000
AREFRE ARBTIT ARBTR ARETT

(Increase) decrease in the REE & (E8) N/A N/A
profit (loss) for the year (38 0) @ i A (4,333) i#E A 6,470

In management'’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis above
is unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the
pricing model used in the valuation of these embedded
derivatives involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantee provided by the Group arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated financial
statements.

The management closely monitors its credit exposure
by implementation of policies for necessary follow-
up actions to minimise its credit risk throughout the
year. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of amounts due from each counterparty at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks in the PRC with high credit
rankings.

156 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTF M &I AE R A A
Annual Report 2018 F #f

EEERR ARZFBHAR
METEMGEEMRERZEE
BRAPRZHEEH A TEH
$HE1ZEW§ BOA EHRE DT
EERBREA ZERER -

15 & & B&
AEEEBEZEAEERRTD
REGEEMBRRMEL ZAEBE
BREHMEEREME % l:l/\\
REizeEEFHrRERITEER
AEBREMBERMELSE
EEXVBEIE -

AEEF&E&B NEAEF R AT

REBULEBZRERREZTIE
THEERR SEEERR
[RERIE - I RNEERE R
ERRBHRKSHFIRALZ
AU Bl £ 5R - UARE LR T RE U]
ZEHEELREZRHERBE -

RREFHRTEEEREERN
MZBIT BRBESTZEE
REREAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T e B IS SRR KT EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_Z—\F=ZA=1+T—HLLFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bills receivables are insignificant
because all bills receivables are bank acceptance bills
issued by state-owned banks and aged within 180 days
at the end of each reporting period.

The Group is exposed to significant concentration of
credit risk on trade receivables arisen from oil and
gas transactions, with exposure spread over certain
counterparties and customers. The Group, through the
Company's two (2017: five) subsidiaries, entered into
a number of contracts to purchase and sell oil and
gas. In general and as part of the Group's prudent
measures, a short duration is kept between each buy
and sell transaction. Such oil and gas contracts involve
six (2017: nine) suppliers and twelve (2017: thirteen)
customers, which are independent from the Group.
For the year ended 31 March 2018, approximately
RMB2,130,000,000 (34% of total gross amount of
oil and gas sales contracts) (2017: approximately
RMB2,253,000,000 (36% of total gross amount of oil
and gas sales contracts)) of contracts that are settled in
cash on a gross basis are entered into with one single
customer which is a third party.

As part of the measures to mitigate the credit
concentration risk, each individual debtor has been
monitored closely and on an ongoing basis. In addition,
gross amounts of oil and gas sales contracts are
settled either by letter of credit or bills issued by the
customers’ banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and are receivable
with an average credit period ranging from seven days
to six months after the bills of lading date of delivery
or by settlement in cash.
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(b)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risk
associated with the deposit paid for acquisition of an
associate and certain of the long-term receivables is
mitigated because the deposit paid for acquisition of
an associate and long-term receivable are secured over
the storages and equipment. The carrying amount of
the deposit paid for acquisition of an associate amounts
to RMB190,748,000 (2017: RMB190,748,000) and certain
of the long-term receivable amounts to RMB117,579,000
(2017: RMB32,187,000).

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use
of borrowings. The management closely monitors the
liquidity position of each company within the Group
and expects to have adequate sources of funding to
finance the Group's operations.

The directors of the Company closely monitor the
liquidity of the Group. Taking into account of (i)
the available loan facilities of RMB632,240,000,
RMB214,276,000 and RMB120,000,000 with maturity
up to September 2018, November 2018 and February
2019, and (ii) the issue of the two-year secured
guaranteed notes of HK$300,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB242,772,000) in May 2018 with maturity up to April
2020, respectively, pursuant to the relevant facilities
documents, the directors of the Company are confident
that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future
and be able to operate on a going concern basis.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

45. ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ-(uﬁ)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEREBEEEHERBKE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESERE)
The following tables detail the Group's contractual —Fi HIAXEEeHABENE
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been WEIHAE - ZEFERBIDENRAEKE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of E A E RN R &F BERE
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which CRHABENAMRBASRER
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes & ZEBEENERAEHEE
both interest and principal cash flows. TME °
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the WA B RERZETE - BIKRE,
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at REeWMIIEERERARZFE o
the end of the reporting period.
Weighted
average On demand Total
interest  or within 61-180  181-365 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 60 days days days days days 5 years cash flows amount
I 1 h"%:ﬁﬂ#:ﬁ 181F RAUERBTE
Flx R60KA 61E180K 365K 1ZE2 2E5%  SELE REGE R {8
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000
ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETIT ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
As at 31 March 2018 R-=¥-N\§=R
=+-—H
Non-derivative financial ETELAR
liabilities
Trade payables and other BEORABRAR
liabilities Hip B - 1,268,405 - - - - - 1,268,405 1,268,405
Amounts due to associates {5 B & AR FUE - 38,505 - - - - - 38,505 38,505
Bank borrowings BITEE
— fixed rate —EER = 4.79-7.00 100,492 235,019 76,000 - - - 411,511 402,760
— variable rate —FHH % 6.09-6.60 813 19,332 24,820 25,451 11,979 - 82,395 76,000
Other borrowings HifE & 10.00 — 158,343 - - - - 158,343 143,948
Financial guarantee contract B ER &4 - 135,000 - - - - - 135,000 -
1,543,215 412,694 100,820 25,451 11,979 — 2,094,159 1,929,618
Weighted
average On demand Total
interest or within 61-180 181-365 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted  Carrying
rate 60 days days days days days 5 years cash flows amount
MEFY REREL 181F KRR
S ROXRA  61Z180K 365K 1226 2B5%F  SEME hERE BEE
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
As at 31 March 2017 ;e -biF- R
+
Non-derivative financial #b:riﬁnﬂéﬂ
liabilities
Trade payables and other EHRABRAR
liabilities H it 8 fE — 993,583 - — — - — 993,583 993,583
Amounts due to associates FEfTBE & AR FE = 12,949 — e e — e 12,949 12,949
Convertible bond AR % 16.64 — 2,067 68,965 — - — 71,032 65,200
Bank borrowings BITEE
— fixed rate —E A= 5.20-7.84 102,713 64,603 103,231 — - — 270,547 265180
— variable rate —iF 8 F % 6.15-8.10 589 2915 8,897 10,239 13,806 3,043 61,489 56,000
Other borrowings Hife & 5.00 — 124,455 = = = = 124,455 118,528
Financial guarantee contract B #§#E R & 4 — 135,000 — e e — e 135,000 =
1244834 216040 181,093 10,239 13,806 3,043 1,669,055 1,511,440
Embedded derivatives BRAXFTETR 15,547 = = = = = 15,547 15,547
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settled under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of each reporting period.

Fair values

Fair value of the Group’s material financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s material financial asset and
financial liability are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these
financial asset and financial liability are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T e B IS SRR KT EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s material financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair

value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair Value as at
31 March 2018
R-ZE—N\E

SA=+-H2ATE

Fair Value
Hierarchy

45. €T R (48)

) RFEE
REFHEREUAFEFEZ
FEEEXEMEEREME
BZAEEER)

Valuation technique(s)
& key inputs

EERW RS E

Available-for-sale
investment

AEHERE

RMB220,886,000

Fair Value
Hierarchy

Fair Value as at
31 March 2018
R-F-NE=ZR=+—H

ZAFEE AFEER

A E#220,886,0007T

Market approach (2017: RMB202,200,000)

Based on the market multiples of identical
or similar benchmarked entities on
the market (2017: Based on the recent
transactions price of identical or similar
assets on the market)

misE(ZE —+ & : AR#%202,200,0007T)

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁM%ﬁ?%Fm%Zﬁ%1%
(ZE2E—tF ERERAKBEUEERT
BZERSE)

Valuation technique (s)
& key inputs

HERA RS
HBAE

Significant unobservable
input(s)

EXFOHE

BAE B E

Sensitivity

Embedded
derivative

Nil (2017: RMB15,547,000) Level 3
component of
convertible bond

B ESZ
BRARPTETR
i)

Z(ZZT—tF  AR¥% E=® A
15,547,0007T)

Binomial Option Pricing
Model

The key input is share
price, risk-free rate,
time to maturity,
dividend yield, and
volatility

—EAHREEER

R AE: RE - E&R
B F k- BIHRERR -
REW R ER

B &

There were no transfers amongst levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the year ended 31 March 2018 and

2017.

Volatility of 40.99% in
year 2017 was applied
in the Convertible

The higher the volatility
in share price, the
higher the fair value
of the embedded
derivative component
of convertible bond

Bond by reference to
the share price of the
Company

—R - FRERA099% BRERELD - AIRTHBAR
AR ES (2 REFZBRARPTET
EARRE ZBIE) Az ATELH

=

REBEEZE_ZF-N\FER_F—+F
=A=t+—RILEFERAFER?
2B EER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial liabilities

The movement of embedded derivative component of
convertible bond is set out in note 38.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the gain
on fair value change of embedded derivative of
RMB14,939,000 is recognised to profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of debt and derivative
components of Convertible Bond, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuer to perform the
valuation of the debt component of convertible bond.
The directors work closely with the qualified external
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. In determining the valuation
assumptions and inputs, the directors take into account
the market-observable data as well as factors specific
to the Company’s Convertible Bond, as follows:

o Dividend yield
historical dividend yield of the Company at the

— estimated based on the
end of the reporting period;

o Risk free rate — referenced to the yield of
Exchange Fund Bills & Notes at the end of the

reporting period;

o Volatility — estimated based on the share prices
of the Company’s historical volatility;

o Share price — referenced to the share price of
the Company at the valuation date; and

o Time to maturity — referenced to the remaining
years of the Convertible Bond.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c)  Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

of financial liabilities (Continued)

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs

used in determining the fair value of various assets and

liabilities are disclosed above.

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values. The fair values of debt component
of Convertible Bond is derived using discounted cash
flows at an appropriate debt yield from comparable
bonds in the markets.

45. 2T R (&)

) RFEHE)
EMEBERE=RAOFEFEZ
HER (&)

ARETEEAERAEAT
B2 BRI AEZE R
W EXHE -

BRTRAFL EFRR N
EMBRERPREHEKAEA
ZEMEERTRBEZERE
BEZOLEAFE - TBERES
BEMBOD A FELERETS
AhBEFZEEEFKE X
FRZASRESE -

2018 2017
—F-0\£ Tt fF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount  Fair value
FRmE{E AFE REE N¥1E
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR AR%®TT AREKTT
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Debt component of R ESED
Convertible Bond 2815 — — 65,200 65,191

The fair value of the debt component of Convertible
Bond categorised as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
is determined and using a debt yield of comparable
bonds by assuming the credit strength of the Company
to be CCC equivalent.

FRRAFEERE=ZMRAZ
AgBREFAERNDIAFER
BEARAZIEEENRCCCE
B FARLUESZEBH KRS X
BE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

HE=—Z

—NEZA=+—AILEE

46. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 46. IS EEFMELBEZHIER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRABEINASEEREEBTES
arising from financing activities, including both cash and WEEZY  EHeRRERIIERS
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities 2y MmEFTHMELEZABRNBR
are those for which cash flow were, or future cash flow will RARBREREGHNAEELEER
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash EREBXRTFHOERMEGTHMERS
flows as cash flows from financing activities. mE °
Bank and
Other Interest  Convertible
borrowings Payables Bond Total
IRITR
HihtE & BNFE SREES Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETRT AR¥ETRT AREBTR ARBTR
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFMA—H 439,708 — 65,200 504,908
New bank and other BEEGIERTREAM

borrowings raised =R 653,948 — — 653,948
Repayments of bank and BERFTREMEE

other borrowings (470,948) — — (470,948)
Interest paid BRI = (17,937 (2,271) (20,208)
Redemption of Convertible & [E ] # ik & %

Bond = = (66,217) (66,217)
Interest expense AMEHL — 17,937 5,699 23,636
Exchange gains from BARTETAER

embedded derivatives U = = — (2,411) (2,411)
At 31 March 2018 R-B-N\¥$=H

=t+—~H 622,708 — - 622,708
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ 9
AR B R M aE A

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES

Balances with related parties are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the related notes.

47. ARAEANEI XS REMEE

HEMEALTZEBRE2IINRE B
N E SN

B LA EREM R EESN  AREZ

Save as disclosed in respective notes above, the Group had

the following transactions with related parties: EHREALRZWAT:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR T T
a) Sales of LNG to a related party a) [—E6BEALHE
RIEX AT
— Circle Energy — L B IR = 1,144
b)  Sales of oil and gas contract b) HEABERXAREH
— Circle Energy — LT BIR — 26,550
¢)  Purchase of LNG from an associate c¢) [(—BBELAGEE
BIEXART
— Guiran Pipeline Company — EMREBRF 145,244 127,773
d)  Purchase of oil and gas contract d BEAHRIAREH
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) Co., — TFREREB)E
Limited (Note 1) R &) (B RET) 134,828 111,329
Note 1: The company is a subsidiary of Circle Energy. Ml ZRBRTFRBRZIMERF -
e)  Compensation of key management personnel e) FTEEBEAEZHH

AEEZTEEEEKE (KRR
A2 EERITTRABERIN ZF

The remuneration of members of key management of
the Group other than the directors and chief executive

of the Company during the year are as follows: EMEmT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR T T
Compensation of directors (note 14) T = 3 BN (P 5E14) 4,139 4,160
Compensation of key management TEREEABZEHM
personnel
Basic salaries and allowance HEAH & MoERL 5,321 3,940
Contributions to retirement benefit iR K AR A EF &I R
schemes 547 648
10,007 8,748
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48. A A TIHMBEIRNIEE
THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end

R|EHR - AT 2B AR R EER

of the reporting period is summarised as follows:

Bt an T -

2018 2017
—F—-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARSBFT ARET T

Non-current assets IEmBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRIZKE 4,119,006 4,097,748
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 364,989 380,727
4,483,995 4,478,475

Current assets mEE E
Other receivables H b W BR 3k 41 40
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 957 382,592
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B A R R IB 429,387 —
430,385 382,632
Current liabilities mEEE

Other payables b JE < BR 3K 1,376 6,686
Other borrowing HiEE 143,948 —
Convertible bond A] 2 f% (& 5 — 65,200
Embedded derivatives BRAXPTET A — 15,547
145,324 87,433
Net current assets mENE EFE 285,061 295,199
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRSAR 4,769,056 4,773,674

Capital and reserves AR 7N % 7% 4
Share capital [N 549,014 549,014
Reserves (note 49) % 18 (BT 5249) 4,220,042 4,224,660
Total equity R A 4,769,056 4,773,674
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

49. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 49. KA T
Other
Share reserve  Translation Accumulated
premium (note) reserve losses Total
Hitfit 5
1% 7 i {8 (B &%) BERE RitBHE Mt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFRE AREFR ARBTRT AREBTRT ARETR

At 1 April 2016 RZFE-REMA—B 4,031,177 62921 (178,113) (91,387) 3,824,598
Loss and total comprehensive FREBERZA
expense for the year gk — — — (20,775) (20,775)
Issue of shares BT 426,867 — — — 426,867
Transaction cost attributable to  #1T#T LB R EER
issue of new ordinary shares HH A (6,030) = = = (6,030)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—t5=H
=+—H 4,452,014 62,921 (178,113) (112,162) 4,224,660
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZH
expense for the year Rx @8 = - - (4,618) (4,618)
At 31 March 2018 RZB-\F=H
=t+-—H 4,452,014 62,921 (178,113) (116,780) 4,220,042
Note: The other reserve represents the credit arising from the capital Miet: EMFEEFERAHDRPTES 2 ERE -
reduction where the par value of each existing share was reduced RAEIR BB LAFEBRREERN
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the cancellation of HK$0.09 of the paid- ZHRBRAEHOVET  EERIRA
up capital on each existing share in prior years. & 15 2 E B R 0.1078 ST Bl A £0.018 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHEZT—N\F=—A=1+—HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. B A B F18
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 and ARAR_B-—NFR_FE—tF=
2017 are as follows: R=+—BzHWEBARIFBEWT:
Nominal value of  Percentage of nominal
Place of issued ordinary  value of issued share
incorporation/  Place of share/paid-up ~capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
ERRI/ ) ERfFLER/ FLARFERIRE/
HEAEER it i 4 26 GERE GREMEFEE HEREFEEZENM IERH
2018 2017
-\ ZB—+f
Ying Luen International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$240,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding and
Investment Limited* oil contracts trading
BRERRAERAA EiB &b 240,000,000/ 7T REBRRRARAY
Union Honor Limited* BVI BVI HK$464,332,742 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
BRERADF ABEX EBEX 464,332,142 T REAREK
B8 S
BMHTZHEBRAE (hote b) PRC PRC RMB412,200,000  100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding and
(Registered capital: sales of liquefied
RMB957,000,000) natural gas
(it &zb) P i A K %412,200,000 REARRRBIERAR
T(EMER: AR HE
957,000,0007c)
BESAMEELRARA A PRC PRC RMB120,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
Xingxing Energy (note ¢) LNG
EERR(H ) e e A K #120,000,0007C EERBERLRAR
EMPEZERERAR PRC PRC RMB70,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
Huixin Energy (note c) LNG
[ &5 (B & c) hE e A K #70,000,0007 EERBERLRAR
EMNESHERERRAA" PRC PRC RMB40,000,000 49.7% 497%  Sale of piped gas
Huaheng Energy (note a)
Z7 R Ea) hE ik AR #40,000,0007T HEEBAAR
SERZMRBBEMAF hote ) PRC PRC RMB26,700,000 57.3% 573%  Vehicle gas refuelling
stations and sale of
NG
(MisEc) P PE AR #26,700,0007T AEMRUERFEERE
EMNTEEMRERAF* hote)  PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Provision of logistics
service
(M) G t AR #10,000,0007 BRI
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Statements

50. KB A B &F 1% (&)

Nominal value of

Percentage of nominal

Place of issued ordinary  value of issued share
incorporation/  Place of share/paid-up ~capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
HRRIL/ B ERfTLER,/ FAARFERARE/
WEBASEHR it i 2 E2nE GREMEFEE HREFEEZENME ZEEH
2018 2017
28—\ —F-{%
EMETREBRAA PRC PRC RMB22,800,000  100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
i i AR %22,800,00070 REZRK
BENETRERZEERAR" PRC PRC Nl 100.0% 1000%  Investment holding
Ju Yuan (note c) (Registered capital:
RMB30,000,000)
(M) P HE Z(EMER: ARE RERR
30,000,0007z)
MNP ERRREERAR" PRC PRC Nil (Registered 71.0% 71.0%  Power distribution and
(note ¢) capital: related service
RMB201,000,000)
(MisEc) P HE Z(EMER:ARE EEREARS
201,000,0007T)
Fully World Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0% Ol trading
SEARAR* &b BB BT BhES
Firmwill Investments Limited BVI BVI US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
BEREARAT EEBRX EBRX E3 REZR
B8 S
EMNEERREEFRAF* (hoteb) PRC PRC US$990,000  100.0% 1000% Ol and gas trading
(FitsEb) P ik 990,000% T BHRRARES
Colourful Rite Limited* BVI BVI US$10,000  100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
VEARRR RBEX EBRX 10,000% T RERR
BS BS
Right Central Limited * Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0% Inactive
RERRAH &b &b BT HAEE
White Night Global Limited* BVI BVI US$1 100.0% N/A~ Inactive
RBREX EBRX (E3 TER  HAEE
BS BS

* They are subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company.

* RERRARAREHEEFAEZMBLRA
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered between the Group
and a 50% equity owner of Huaheng Energy on 28 December 2012,
the equity owner has committed to follow the voting direction
and decision of the Group on shareholders’ meeting and board
of directors’ meeting except for certain special resolution relating
to increase or reduction of registered capital, merger or spinoff,
change of legal form, dismissal or liquidation and amendments to
memorandum and articles of association of Huaheng Energy. As
such, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
has obtained control over Huaheng Energy and has accounted for
Huaheng Energy as a subsidiary of the Group.

(b) The subsidiaries were set up as wholly-owned foreign investment
enterprise registered in the PRC.

(c) The subsidiaries were set up as companies with limited liability
established in the PRC.

(d) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
31 March 2018 or at any time during the year.
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Financial Information of Five Years

TFEHHHE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT—N\F=-A=1+—HIEFE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group changes the
presentation currency of its consolidated financial statements from
Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi (“RMB").

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements for the years ended
31 March 2014, 2016 and 2017 and being translated and presented
in RMB appropriately, as below. For the year ended 31 March 2015
and its comparative figures which was restated as appropriate were

extracted from the annual report 2015 as below.

RBE_ZT-—R"E=A=+—HILFE K
SESAVWBBRZEIEBHETER
BARBEIARED -

REBBERAEVBFECEENAREE
raERMENREEE R s BEE=S — Y
F E-—RNERT—+F=A=+—H
IEFEREGUBHRE  WIRARKHZ
BRERZINAT - U TAHEZZT—HF
—A=+—BLFEMREZAELRZ
HFFELEN(WEHE) BERSENR_ZE—RF
FH o

Year ended 31 March

BE=A=t-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2014
Z®-N\E “F+F "F-RF _F-AF _T-AF _F-QOF
RVE'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
(restated)
(mE5)
RESULTS E3
Turnover L 8,149,851 7972843 6841169 6440317 9991,39%6 7,782,850
Profit (loss) before tax BREA&EH (BE) 212,415 (91,328) (6,086) 29.418 227477 4,756)
Income tax (expense) credit FERAEX)ESR (38,977) (13919) (13935) 3,127 (59,290) (184)
Profit (loss) for the year FREF(ER) 173,438 (105,247) (20,021) 32,545 168,187 (4940)
At 31 March
R=B=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2014
Z®-N\E “F+F "F-RF _F-AFf _T-AF _F-0OF
RVE'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETTE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(restated)
(mE5)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEE 3,618,201 3008258 3,082,805 2619242 3756663 1,590,100
Total liabilities BEF (2,172,316)  (1,744,611)  (2,204,205)  (1904760)  (3,072,068)  (1,524,393)
Net assets FEE 1445885 1,263,647 878,600 714,482 684,595 65,707
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